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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Macau E&M Holding Limited (“Macau E&M” or the
“Company”), | hereby announces the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Year” or the “Reporting Period”).

During the Reporting Period, we continued to be confronted by stiff
headwinds. Though we have certainly experienced many peaks and
troughs in our history, the challenges presented during the Year and in
the recent past have been unprecedented owing to the COVID-19
pandemic and our profit was inevitably affected. Despite this, we have
persevered and prudently used these hard times to better the Group.
While revenue for the Year totaled Macanese Pataca (“MOP”) 143.0
million, we have continued to win new electrical and mechanical
(“E&M”) contracts, the value of which will be reflected in the near future.
Breaking new ground, we have also steered the Group to new business
frontiers in the form of public housing projects, among other pursuits.
At the same time, we have reinforced ties with vendors, business
partners, customers and the Macau SAR Government. Progress has
been made as well in optimizing internal operations, which in turn will
result in greater efficiencies and cost savings. Just as significant, we
have further strengthened our core competencies, best practices,
advanced construction technologies and financial position.

All of the aforementioned achievements are due to the competence,
commitment and passion of the Macau E&M workforce. During the
Year, each member of our staff played an integral role in protecting the
wellbeing of the Group. In appreciation for their individual and collective
efforts, we have done our utmost to safeguard the integrity of our
operational teams. Furthermore, we have extended training to advance
their professional development. We have also kept our retention of
existing workforce without staff redundancy in the year of 2022. This
stance embodies the Group’s overall view towards corporate social
responsibility and its own corporate culture, which is to respect staff
and contribute further.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Looking ahead, the reopening of borders with the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and the rest of the world can only be a good sign for
Macau. The Macau economy is projected to expand by between 20.5%
and 44.1% in 2023, resulting in government revenue of between MOP55
billion and MOP66.1 billion, according to the University of Macau. With
respect to the gaming sector, revenue has already increased by 82.5%
year-on-year to MOP11.6 billion in January 2023, which recorded the
first year-on-year increase since February 2022, and the highest
monthly revenue recorded since January 2020 when COVID-19 struck .
In view of such developments, we are optimistic about the outlook for
the E&M industry as a whole, as well as our own business performance.
Given the various efforts made in bolstering different facets of the
Group, we are committed to emerging from the current downturn to
take a leading role in the industry’s recovery, as well as the sustainable
development of Macau. At the same time, we will position the Group so
that it is on course for expanding into new sectors, which in turn will
facilitate its further and upward development.

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and
the management of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all of our shareholders, investors, customers and partners
for their trust in and continuous support for the Group. My heartfelt
appreciation also goes to all of our staff members for their tremendous
effort and outstanding performance over the past year.

CHEONG Ka Wo
Chairman, CEO and Executive Director

24 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Group is an E&M engineering services works contractor in Macau,
ranking fifth among the E&M engineering services works contractor in
Macau in 2019 according to the market research report provided by
Frost & Sullivan on the Macau E&M engineering services market. As an
integrated E&M engineering service works contractor registered with
the Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau, the Company
provides a comprehensive mix of E&M engineering service works based
on the needs of its customers in Macau. The comprehensive mix of
E&M engineering works involves a combination of the supply and/or
installation of (i) low voltage systems works; (ii) heating, ventilation and
air-conditioning systems works; and (iii) extra low voltage systems
works, and the relevant testing and commissioning thereof as well as
management and monitoring of quality and delivery of E&M engineering
services works in Macau. The Group began its business through
focusing on the public sector E&M engineering services works projects
and gradually expanded into the private sector. The Group offers repair
and maintenance service for property and hospitality facilities in Macau,
including world class hotels and integrated entertainment resorts. The
demand from this sector would be driven by the strategy and planning
of the casinos and hotel operators in Macau, which would in turn
increase the demand for repair and maintenance related E&M works.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the first half of 2022, the entire Macau economy remained
lacklustre as a result of many uncertainties associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic, including new variants of the virus. In early July,
the enclave experienced its first ever period of “Relatively Static”
management (18%1 5% |F &) as the Macau SAR Government sought to
control the rapid spread of the virus in the city. For approximately two
weeks, all non-urgent business operations and services were
suspended, except for livelihood-related services. Throughout this
period, the Group suspended its operations and certain tender
submissions and ongoing projects were postponed. However, as the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic abated and casino licenses were
renewed, Macau moved closer to normality in the second half of 2022
and much of the anxiety had turned to optimism.

For the Year, the Group recorded total revenue of MOP143.0 million
(2021: MOP184.5 million). Gross profit and gross profit margin were
MOP25.1 million (2021: MOP43.4 million) and 17.5% (2021: 23.5%),
respectively, while net profit and net profit margin recorded MOP9.3
million (2021: MOP26.2 million) and 6.5% (2021: 14.2%) respectively.
The decrease in net profit was primarily attributable to the decrease in
gross profit margin of the projects awarded, as a result of (i) the
intensifying competition in the market due to a reduction in the number
of projects available for tender with higher tendered costs under the
continuous impact brought by the COVID-19 pandemic; (ii) more
stringent cost control for projects from both private and public sectors;
and (iii) the Group’s retention of existing workforce without staff
redundancy in the year of 2022 in order to be socially responsible.

During the Year, the Group had 35 projects in hand, both in the public
and private sectors. In addition, the Group continued to submit tenders
for new projects to sustain revenue growth and promote business
stability. During the Year, the Group successfully secured two large
tender projects related to the private sector and government housing,
with a total value of more than MOP58 million. During the Reporting
Period, the Group directed greater focus on government projects such
as public housing, with the objective of receiving more invitations to
tender from members of the private sector in the future, such as casinos
and hotels.

Despite the different challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group remains a healthy financial position. As at the end of the Year,
the Group had cash and bank balances (including short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits) of MOP119.8 million with a bank
mortgage borrowings of MOP13.3 million. In addition, net current assets
amounted to approximately MOP189.6 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Bt %5 B B8
Uy 228

TRETAEBRE E20224F 2021 F12
A 318 ILFERUESAAE :

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 £

MOP’000 MOP’000

FEF5 T FEFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(R =) (g #E=Z)
E&M engineering works WE TR 139,573 97.6 180,071 97.6
Maintenance and repair services {R%&E N G ERTE 3,473 2.4 4,425 2.4
143,046 100.0 184,496 100.0

The Group recorded revenue of MOP143.0 million for the Year, which
represented a year-on-year decrease of 22.5% (2021: MOP184.5
million), the decrease was primarily attributable to the unexpected
continuation of global travel restrictions in the second half of 2022 due
to the COVID-19 pandemic which had constituted a material adverse
impact on tourism and other related industries in Macau region and
thereby affecting the investments in infrastructures and projects in
Macau.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Gross profit

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s gross profit
and gross margin for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

B

TREY| A EBRE 22022 F 22021 F12
A31HIEFENEFREFEPM :

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F

Gross Gross Gross Gross
profit margin profit margin
EF EFI= EA| ER=
MOP’000 % MOP’000 %

FEF T FEFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(REX) (fe2=t%)
E&M engineering works HWETE 22,685 16.3 40,447 22.5
Maintenance and repair services  {R%& K& #1E R 2,393 68.9 2,992 67.6
25,078 17.5 43,439 235

The Group recorded a gross profit of MOP25.1 million for the Year,
which represented a year-on-year decrease of 42.3% (2021: MOP43.4
million), which was primarily attributable to the decrease in contract
revenue during the Year.

The Group’s gross profit margin was 17.5% for the Year, which
represented a decrease as compared with that for FY 2022 at 23.5%.
The decrease in gross profit margin of the projects awarded, as a result
of (i) the intensifying competition in the market due to a reduction in the
number of projects available for tender with higher tendered costs
under the continuous impact brought by the COVID-19 pandemic; (ii)
more stringent cost control for projects from both private and public
sectors; and (jii) the Group’s retention of existing workforce without staff
redundancy in the year of 2022 in order to be socially responsible.

Other income

Other income increased by MOPO0.5 million to MOP1.8 million (2021:
MOP1.3 million). The increase was mainly benefited from the increase
of interest rate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Impairment losses under expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model, net of reversal

The reversal of impairment losses in trade receivables and contract
assets were MOPO0.1 million for the Year (2021: reversal of MOPO0.3
million plus impairment loss of MOPO.7 million), the provision for
impairment losses has decreased as a result of the receivables being
recovered from a court case, the total affected balance was less than
MOP1.0 million. The Group applied a simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables and contract
assets. Trade receivables and contract assets with individual significant
balances are assessed for impairment individually, the remaining trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed collectively using a
collective basis with appropriate groupings.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by MOP0.5 million to MOP16.1
million for the Year (2021: MOP15.6 million). The increase was mainly
due to the additional spending on hotel accommodation and COVID-19
kits for staff during the pandemic period.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by MOP1.7 million or 57.7% to MOP1.2
million for the Year, mainly due to the decrease of profit before tax.

Profit for the Year

The Group’s profit for the Year decreased by MOP16.9 million or
64.5%, which was primarily attributable to the combined effect of the
abovementioned items.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management to minimise
financial and operational risks. The Group’s operations mainly relies on
internally generated cash flows from its core business.

In the management of liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets of
MOP189.6 million (2021: MOP221.2 million). The current ratio of the
Group at 31 December 2022 was 6.9 times (2021: 6.8 times).

The Group has maintained a healthy liquidity position. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had total bank balances (including short-
term bank deposits and pledge bank deposits) of MOP119.8 million
(2021: MOP176.0 million). The Group’s bank balances were mainly in
MOP and Hong Kong Dollar (‘“HK$”).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank mortgage borrowing of
MOP13.3 million (2021: Nil) at Bank of China Macau Branch with
interest rate at 1 month Hibor +1.3% and capped interest rate at Prime
-3%, and the Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total debts dividing
by total equity) was 6.2% (2021: zero).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s share capital and reserves
amounted to MOP5.2 million and MOP209.6 million, respectively (2021:
MOP5.2 million and MOP231.3 million, respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was 6.2% (31
December 2021: zero) as the Group had an outstanding mortgage loan
for the newly acquisition of office premises which will be the
headquarter and principal place of business in Macau loans as at 31
December 2022. The gearing ratio is calculated as the borrowings
divided by the total equity as at the end of the respective periods and
multiplied by 100%.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$ and MOP. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had no exposure to foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency
swaps or other financial derivatives.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS, AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

On 6 May 2022, Kento Engineering Company Limited (“Kento
Engineering”, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
purchaser and Valga Investments Limited as vendor entered into the
preliminary agreements pursuant to which the purchaser has agreed to
acquire, and the vendor has agreed to sell, certain office premises and
a car parking space both located in Macau at a total consideration of
HK33.0 million. Completion of the acquisitions of the office premises
and car parking space took place on 1 July 2022. For further details of
the acquisitions, please refer to announcements of the Company dated
6 May 2022, 29 June 2022 and 3 July 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments held
and no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures during the Year.

The Group had no future plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding performance
bonds of MOP5.4 million (2021: MOP6.7 million) which were secured by
pledged bank deposits of MOP1.6 million (2021: MOP1.9 million). The
Group has obtained total credit facilities of MOP98.0 million (2021:
MOP149.6 million) and this credit facilities were secured by the
promissory notes of approximately MOP153.2 million (2021: MOP164.5
million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a bank mortgage borrowing of
MOP13.3 million in related to the office premises acquisition on 1 July
2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other pledged assets or
other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group entered into labour contracts with its employees in
accordance with the labour laws of Macau. The remuneration package
offered to employees generally includes basic salaries, allowances,
benefits-in-kind and bonus. In general, the Group determines the
remuneration package of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority.

As the main contractor for some of the projects undertaken, the Group
applies for work permits for its non-Macau resident workers on a
project-by-project basis. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 61
(2021: 59) employees in Macau, comprising 42 Macau residents and 19
non-Macau residents (2021: 40 Macau residents and 19 non- Macau
residents).

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 21 August 2020, which was effective upon the listing (the
“Listing”) of the ordinary shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 11 September 2020 (the “Listing Date”).
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out under the section
headed “Directors’ Report — Share Option Scheme” of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDN

PROSPECTS

In view of various favourable external and internal factors, including the
opening of Macau’s borders, the renewal of casino licenses, and the
Group’s solid foundation and stable financial position, Macau E&M is
cautiously optimistic about the market and the E&M industry as a
whole. Going forward, it will proactively explore potential business
opportunities as society returns to normal.

With its leading position in the industry, the Group has already won
several government projects, which are expected to generate revenue
for the Group in the year ending 31 December 2023. Also, with the
possibility of receiving more tender invitations from casinos and hotels
in the second half of 2023, the Group is confident in securing more new
projects and generating additional incomes.

Given its prudent internal management, including adherence to stringent
cost control measures and policies for ensuring the maintenance of a
stable workforce, the Group is well positioned and fully prepared to
seize new opportunities as and when the market upturn gathers pace.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK$1.08 cents (2022:
HK$2.03 cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Final Dividend”) to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

The payment of the Final Dividend is subject to the Shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”). Upon the approval by the Shareholders, the Final Dividend
are expected to be paid on or around Friday, 23 June 2023.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - H2RERKRE

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the third Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
(the “ESG Report”) presented by Macau E&M. The ESG Report has
been prepared in both Chinese and English and can be accessed on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Reporting Scope

The ESG Report covers the Group’s ESG performance during the
Reporting Period. Similar to last year, the ESG Report focuses on the
operation of electrical and mechanical engineering and management
and repair services. The relevant environmental KPIs are further
restricted to the Group’s corporate offices’ and a warehouse in Macau
due to the fact that they have a significant impact on the operations of
the Group. Looking forward, the Group will also be committed to
improving our data collection system and gradually expanding the
reporting scope to provide stakeholders with more comprehensive
information.

Reporting Standard

This ESG Report has fully complied with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Guide”) in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange and the four reporting
principles, including Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency,
have been applied in the preparation of the ESG Report.

Materiality The Group conducts materiality assessment through
questionnaires annually to identify material issues
related to sustainable development. The results have
been referenced in the reporting framework of this
ESG Report to ensure that the material issues are

addressed.

Quantitative  Unless otherwise specified, the Group adopts the
same methodologies for data collection and disclosure
for comparability of data.

e Balance The Group upholds the principle of impartiality and

reports fully on both positive and negative impacts.

e Consistency The Group uses consistent statistical method and
provides historical data if possible to demonstrate the
performance and progress of the Group’s sustainable

development.

! During the Reporting Period, the Group acquired a new office, which was
officially opened in October. The environmental data related to the renovation
and use of this office are included in this ESG Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - #HERERHKE

Board Approval

The Group is committed to ensuring that all information presented in
this ESG Report is accurate and reliable. The ESG Report was
confirmed and approved by the Board on 24 March 2023.

Opinions and Feedbacks

The Group’s continuous improvement depends on the valuable
opinions of all stakeholders. If you have any doubt about the content
of this ESG Report, welcome to contact the Group through the
following means:

Email: info@macauem.com

Phone: (853) 2872 0006

Mail: Avenida da Concordia, nos 175-181,

Edificio Industrial Wang Fu, 10 Andar B e D Macau

BEEHE

NEBE W N FERAESGIRE FE 1A B E
AEME R 5 - ESG3R & 12023443 424 H &
EEeRANLIE -

EREREE

REBE W FESCER BB M HR T
BEEER - MHARESGHREN AR HIERM
R BULEBAT T AEAEERE

B # : info@macauem.com
=% ¢ (853) 2872 0006
e RPIRLEKF K 175-181 5%

AEILFERE101EBEK DR

SUSTAINABILITY APPROACH
Sustainability Governance and Risk Management

With increasing concerns about the ESG performance of companies,
the establishment of a robust governance culture and system is vital to
the future development of the Group. In face of various ESG issues, the
Board has played an active role in leading and overseeing all major
matters, such as formulating the Group’s overall management and
business strategy, revising risk management and internal control
systems, supervising the performance of senior management and
ensuring effective management of sustainability matters across all
divisions. To ensure the effectiveness, the Board reviews the ESG-
related strategies and targets on a regular basis as well as expands and
enhances the management approaches made against the same when
appropriate.

Under the leadership of the Board, the Group has in place an ESG
Working Group comprising employees from different departments to
manage the ESG-related matters. Members of the ESG Working Group
are responsible for monitoring ESG-related performances, recognizing
and managing our major ESG risks, they meet twice a year to identify
areas for improvement and create sustainable value for stakeholders.

In the future, the Group will continue to utilize the assistance of our ESG
Working Group and external consulting agency, hoping to continuously
formulate a more comprehensive and targeted ESG risk management
framework, conduct regular reviews on related ESG risks, and update
relevant policies, measures and targets. The Group hopes to improve
our sustainability performance and risk management, and establish an
efficient governance structure.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI g RERRE

BRERE

The Group recognizes the importance of regulatory compliance, and AEEFREEEAENEE N » TEHRD
any non-compliance may affect the normal business operations, AT E FEFNEKLIE BRI EE
financial position and reputation, and in serious cases may lead to £ - B EM AL BB HIB A ETT
enforcement actions by regulators. To ensure full compliance, every &) - AR 2 A @ SR NG R I
department is committed to reviewing and making sure the latest REET{EEMMNSTEESERE  BHoRAE
regulatory developments related to its work to avoid fines or litigation 81 & S R IRHEFA - FREBRSHRNY
for non-compliance. The following are the laws and regulations that AREEFERFERAREIRIAN A FRAREE -
have a material impact on the Group and the status of compliance

during the Reporting Period.

Compliance Management

Laws and regulations that
have a significant impact

on the Group
HEAEEEEATE

Possible material impacts

AREATE

Compliance status

Emissions Law No. 2/91/M The violation of relevant laws During the Reporting Period,
and regulations may result in there were no violations of
General Regulation of administrative and economic relevant laws and regulations
Public Place approved by penalties, and may also affect that have a significant impact on
Administrative Regulation the progress of the project the Group.
No. 28/2004 and damage the reputation of
the Group.
Law No. 22/2020
BRI E2/91/M AR ESEBEEERATRERTT NREHA UEEMESHEH
BEEBER R EERE ERERAZFHAEBELRE
55.28/2004 SEATHUE AR B/ 8Y BEETREAEEBE - 2=
(R P ERE)
£522/2020 5% 512
Employment Law No. 7/2008 The violation of employment- During the Reporting Period,
related laws and regulations there were no violations of
Law No. 21/2009 may lead to a large number relevant laws and regulations
of talent losses, face that have a significant impact on
Law No. 8/2020 administrative penalties, and the Group.
may lead to litigation cases.
&% 557/2008 5% A 1#E BSEBEMZEIRERTRE RNBRSHA TEEFZESHEE
HMAREBAAME  BHERETBE ZFAERERZFHAEEELRE
££21/2009 5% %12 £ - WRIBEBHGERARM -Z
5 8/2020 5% 2
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Health and
safety

EErZE

Laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the Group
HEAEEEEATE
HISEERER

Decree Law No. 44/91/M

Law No. 3/2014

£ 44/91/MERES

5 3/2014 5512

Possible material impacts

THEALE

The violation of health and
safety-related laws and
regulations can lead to
administrative and financial
penalties and affect project
schedules. Safety incidents
can threaten the safety of
employees and lead to costly
litigation.
BERERZEHEBERER
AIEE B BT M 155 S - &
BIHEEE - L2 BWATEEA
EZEILRZWENSHHFA
BN o

Compliance status

B E

During the Reporting Period,
there were no violations of
relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on
the Group.

R EHA - I EAE(E S8R
AEERIEHARHELRE

a4
e

Labour
standards

BTHRE

Law No.7/2008

Chief Executive’s
Dispatch No. 343/2008

Chief Executive’s

Dispatch No. 344/2008

25 7/2008 5L 12

% 343/2008 1 THER B #L/R

5 344/2008 5 TR B #L R

The violation of relevant laws
and regulations may result in
administrative and economic
penalties, and damage the
Group’s reputation.

B EE AR AR
BREERT - WBEALE
BE .

During the Reporting Period,
there were no violations of
relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on
the Group.

RI|BERA - AW B2 EER
FRERZEHARBELRS

B/ 48R
-
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Laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the Group

HEKEREAXE

Possible material impacts Compliance status

HOREER

Product Chief Executive’s
Dispatch No. 88/2010

responsibility

Law No. 44/91/M

Law No. 3/2014

EmEL % 88/2010 51T R B LR
5 44/91/M5RE 72
£ 3/2014 5052

THEALE

The violation of relevant laws
and regulations not only
affects reputation and
competitiveness in the
market, but may also lead to
administrative penalties,
exposing the Group to high
litigation and seriously
affecting the Group’s
profitability.
BEMBERERTMERER
SERERHAEN ST RS
N BEBBUTRES  EF
SEREFARR  WHRER
BREENRATIGEN -

B E

During the Reporting Period,
there were no violations of
relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on
the Group.

REEHA - I EEAE S8R
ERERCEHARBEELRE

=27
2 °

Anti-corruption

Law No. 19/2009

The violation of relevant laws
and regulations can weaken
the Group’s ability to operate
and damage its reputation.

During the Reporting Period,
there were no corruption
lawsuits against the Group or its
employees, and there were no

violations of relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.

RES 55 19/2009 55 /%12 EERBEEERTAISA RESHA - SECAESRMF
SEELRNUBEAEE - HEAKEFHETRE T8
ERTMERARERZE 8

AEBELABEZE -
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that stakeholder engagement is an integral part of
the development of our sustainability process. In order to understand
the ESG-related issues from our stakeholder’s perspective, the Group
maintains close collaboration and regular communication with them.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has identified our key
stakeholder groups and actively engaged them through the following
communication channels:

A AHRI S 2

REBBR - MR T2 EB2 P A 758
BRBEERBD ARG D - BUEF
@A AE THRESGHIME - AEEERK

SRFETAENEHER - WA £
SECHEEENSABETLEBIATER
REERFESREH :

Shareholders and Investors ° Announcement
BRRERKREE i
° Annual General Meeting
o Press Release

° Company Website

. A%

o  FWEFEmE

s RERBFEXREG

e B

o YNGIF R

Annual Report and Interim Report

Satisfaction survey

mEERE

Customers °
=B .

Regular meeting

Employees °
== .
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
L]

Annual performance appraisal
Internal memo/email/WeChat

EHE®E

FERBEER

NEES BB HiE
Suppliers ° On-site assessment
g o IRIGEE
Community ° Company Website
HE o NE|HBUA

During the Reporting Period, the Group commissioned an independent
consultant to conduct a sustainability questionnaire with our internal
and external stakeholders to assess the importance of 16 ESG-related
issues to the Group’s business and their individuals. Those 16 ESG-
related issues were identified based on the guidance of Stock
Exchange, global, regional and industry trends that are relevant to the
markets in which the Group operates, covering the four major areas of
“Environmental Protection”, “Employment and Labor Practices”,
“Operating Practices”, and “Community”. A total of 55 valid responses
were collected, of which 33 were from internal stakeholders and 22
from external stakeholders.

WEMA - NEEZ B RS RN
ST ETARERRASHEE - UFHE
16 THESG AR FZ S A KB XL L EEAR
BEEM - Z16TRESGHAZENIRIEEAE
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The materiality matrix below is obtained by aggregating the
questionnaire results, reflecting the level of concern of the Group’s
stakeholders on different ESG issues.

NTEEUHEMEBELREEREH -
[ B A 52 B A 25 4R B8 07 1 1N [B) ESG &3 1 B
EIRE -

Ns
zs
T

FIREHE

I

H Greenhouse gases proSL;?:nr;ent
and air pollutants Gl
BRSAN ~g P =
Community ’\%%ﬂ% 0\
Investment Supply
HERRE it e

health and safety Ras
BERFEREE N
(]
S
H 8 Emplotyment
ay © Training and system
m 'GC) diivﬁjlllgg%ﬁ O/Eﬁ HE  product
— X Water = responsibility
= % KER EmEE
i’zsl o Dust pollqtion
T o N PRS2
I o Climate change Abt/g\
[
T
o
o
£

N

Occupational O Anti-corruption

O\Child labour and
forced labour

BETREHST

chain

Importance to Busin
HEBNERIE

As indicated in the materiality matrix above, the ESG Report covers the
Group’s efforts and performance on the seven identified material issues,
while also addressing the four secondary issues which are majorly
related to environmental protection and supply chain management.

Anti-corruption

Occupational health and safety
Product responsibility
Employment system

Training and development
Child labour and forced labour
Dust pollution

N o O 0N =

In the future, the Group will review these issues regularly, make
revisions regarding the latest development of the industry and the
Group, deploy coping plans and determine future governance policies
to improve its sustainability performance. Moreover, the Group will
continue to utilize different communication channels and expand its
collection of stakeholders’ opinions to realize the vision of sustainable
development for the Group.
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OUR COMMITMENTS
Developing Our People

A well-established employment system can attract and retain talent.
The Group aims to create a people-centred working environment by
protecting the health and safety, rights and interests of its employees
and their well-being. It also pays attention to employee training and
promotion opportunities, so as to boost employees’ sense of belonging
and achievement.

Protecting the Health and Safety of Employees and
Workers

Policy Purpose

BE B

Work Site Safety Require site workers to follow various
Reference occupational safety matters

(THLee2E) ERTHTAETEERELEEH

Accident Handling
Guide
(CEWBRIEIES])

Make orderly arrangements and reduce
hazards in case of emergencies

EESBERATMEEFZH - RERSE

Providing a healthy and safe workplace for employees is a fundamental
responsibility of a corporate. In light of this, the Group has developed
and executed the “Work Site Safety Reference”, which provides
guidelines on fire prevention, manual work, construction materials and
personal proactive equipment use. The Group endeavors to provide
various education and training on health and safety, with the aim of
ensuring employees are well equipped with the skills and knowledge
required for their position, and effectively guarantee their own safety.
Site workers who are not qualified in safety production education and
training are strictly prohibited from performing their duties.

To promptly respond to health and safety incidents, the Group has
established “Accident Handling Guide”, which provides guidelines for
on-site accidents and injuries and prevents such risks in the workplace
as much as possible. In case of a work-related accident, the project
management team will promptly assist the injured person, review the
cause of the accident, submit an accident investigation report to the
Group and formulate relevant initiatives to avoid the occurrence of
similar accidents. The Group also reviews the effectiveness of the
policies and measures from time to time to ensure that they can
effectively respond to the needs of our employees.

&AM YA
BEAT

TENRBHERRSIMBE AT - KEH
BRREEREBNEERLE - MBI
BENABARNITIFRE - HIVEEB TR
FIMETEE - LR B TRBREAMLR -

REERERTIANBERZZ

Content
AR

Provide guidelines on fire prevention, manual
work, construction materials and personal
proactive equipment use

R FIEFE  BEMBRBEANERE
ERRMtIES

Provide guidelines for prevention and
response to onsite accidents and injuries
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In terms of subcontractor monitoring, the Group actively communicates HEHBEERTH @ AEBBEKES BEE
with and manages its subcontractors and works together to build long- BEREIER @ HEAITERPE NS (ER L

% ZIK%@/L%FHX SREXBEREELS
TOTHTATIE A RE—SREL

term and mutually beneficial partnerships. The Group only allowed site
workers to work after obtaining Occupational Health and Safety Card

24

for Construction Industry. At the same time, to further protect workers A &BEEl @ AEETRESSMAAEHIESS
from dangers, the Group’s Engineering Department is responsible for  fEifii T A#1TIE3 - BT AR T EH
training on-site workers in high-risk positions and checking that workers & - SES BT LB EBSEERT

are wearing protective equipment, with the aim to minimize health and

safety risks through the implementation of the above measures.

During the Reporting Period, there were no work injury incidents that

occurred.

Maintaining a Comprehensive Employment System

Policy

R

Purpose
B

ERBEERE

RBERA > WEBLTIEER -

EFEZENERHE

Content
AAE

Employee Provide a clear basis for human resources Provide guidance regarding staff

Handbook management to ensure fair and objective remuneration, dismissal, recruitment,
management principles, and create a promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
respectful, fair and friendly working opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination,
environment labour standards and benefits

CEIFD RANBEREBRHEARNKE  BRATE RHEIHFHM RE BB A IR
BHERRA €EEE  ATRRIFNIE & HRE - FEHRE 21 RER- %
R TRERENEIEE

Employee Standardize the Group’s human resources  Specify the Group’s recruitment plans and

Recruitment recruitment and allocation management, principles, division of responsibilities,

Procedures enhance recruitment efficiency and improve  application requirements as well as selection
the talent selection mechanism of candidates

(ETHERF) %ﬁ%ﬁ$’il}\jﬁ§ﬁ%ﬂ%@aﬁﬁﬁ CIREBE FTAASEBREHERRA - BEST - EE
Wk EE AT BRI TR R MRE APRE

Diversity Policy

Attract and retain people who are highly

Detail the Group’s commitment and approach

Statement competent, and actively contribute to the to diversity in the workplace.
long-term success of the business.
(ZRAEBRER) ReIRBRBEFAT  BERA/GENRPKY FOAAEBEYTIESMZ T CE A RITE -

Code of Ethics

(BRER~TaD

L ERL

Remind and require employees to pay
attention to their conduct by setting out the
Group’s business ethical principles and
requirements.
HEAEBMEFBRERALESR
KETXFEBHTTR -

REEN B
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Contain general guidelines for conducting the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries
consistent with the highest standards of
business ethics.
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The Group’s long-term business success is directly related to the joint
efforts and contributions of its employees. Hence, protecting the
legitimate rights and interests of employees and cultivating excellent
talents is not only the cornerstone for the Group’s long-term
development, but also vital to the Group’s sustainable development.
The Group has in place the “Employee Handbook” to provide guidance
regarding staff remuneration, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination,
labour standards and benefits. To meet the needs of business
development, the Group had also strengthened our talent management.
The Human Resources department and senior management are
responsible for processes relating to employee evaluation and
promotion. The Group employs personnel without regard to race,
ancestry, place of origin, colour, ethnic origin, language, citizenship,
creed, religion, gender, sexual orientation, age, marital status, physical
and/or mental handicap or financial ability. The anti-discrimination
recruitment and promotion process ensures the Group’s ability to
attract and retain diverse and qualified employees.

To demonstrate our commitment to diversity and equal opportunities,
the Group has formulated the “Diversity Policy Statement” to ensure our
recruitment process is based on a fair and open employment system.
Equal promotion opportunities are offered based on their qualifications,
abilities, performance and other relevant criteria. As of 31 December
2022, there were 11 female employees working for the Group, which is
account for 18% of the total workforce, essentially the same as last
year.

The Group offers various benefits to employees, including training
allowances, bereavement leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
medical benefits. On top of that, the Group recognizes employees’
superior performance with motivational feedback, such as appraisals,
salary adjustments, promotions and Long Service Employee Awards to
enhance employee satisfaction. During the Reporting Period, a total of
61 employees were entitled to the above special benefits.

With respect to the protection of human rights, the “Code of Ethics”
states that the Group recognizes the fundamental and universal nature
of human rights in accordance with international agreements and
treaties such as the United Nations International Human Rights
Conventions and the International Labour Organization. To avoid cases
of child-labour and forced-labour from happening, the Human
Resources department is responsible for verifying the age of all
applicants for employment by requiring the presentation of valid
identification issued by an official authority prior to employment. On the
other hand, a five-day workweek arrangement and compensation leave
for overtime work have also been provided to protect our employees’
rights
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BEREEAE - it REBTH A AR
m BREFAT  TERAKERERR
MER BAKENAHEERTIEZHE
2 - AEECDHECEIFM)  REETH
B R BB B THERE GBR
B FE#e 2t RER BTEHEE
LEMoOER -  RERETERTR A%
B INRAS B - ANBERBPALSRE
EEAEAME TGNENRE A%
ERAABE SRR Mt LA B
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In case of suspected violation of the employment system or labour
standards, the Group encourages employees to report any misconduct
or malpractice to their supervisors, human resources managers, or even
submit a written complaint to the Board, and has set up protective
measures to avoid retaliation against employees who have raised
business conduct issues in good faith or cooperate with the Group’s
investigation.

Investing in Training and Development

The Group understands that nurturing talents is the cornerstone to
maintaining the long-term development of the Group. The Group
strivers to provide numerous on-the-job training opportunities, with the
aim of encouraging our employees to pursue relevant professional
knowledge required for their position in accordance with the provisions
of the Group’s “Code of Ethics”.

With the different needs of departments and positions, a series of
training programmes were organized during the Reporting Period, which
include:

Targeted employees Content
BEEE AE

Newly recruited employees

EAEYRESRRBHIENS TIRE  AEH
sEEERHE LR - ANEIREEERIEM
“ETRIERTR EXMNEFTERIE
EHET - WE I ERERS G - BB ERE
HEETAREREAAREFHEMNE THE
TTHIE

RERSRIIRBREE

AEERR  BEASREBAKBEREH
ROEAL - AEER N RHEAXEEBIFTIIK
€ ZBETRBASE(BEBRTIDR
SRR RMAFTHRMMHERER M -

RIBEFIME LA TRFER - SRS

T—RIIEIAR - B

Required to attend orientation training which helps new employees understand the

corporate culture, rules and regulations, rights and responsibilities of the process

MABET FEE22MARIE -

All employees

BERFET TRAEXL  BREHE -

AR RRER R B AT

Required to attend on-the-job training regularly, including occupational health and

safety training, anti-corruption training and fire safety training etc.

FEEHSMEBIEI

]

2EET

Employees involved
in the site operation

BREBFEREARZ2EI

REFEIN - HH R 2EIF

Required to receive additional training, in which an assessment is conducted to
validate their skills in implementing safe production operations to strengthen

employees’ capabilities in the prevention of accidents and handling of emergencies

\\}v

= BRI -
WM Z 2B ARE

o Ee (=)=

During the Year, the majority of the Group’s employees received
relevant training in accordance with their job responsibilities, with an
average of 25.44 hours of training per trained employee.
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Driving Operational Excellence

The Group attaches great importance to the continuous improvement of
our construction quality as well as enhancing customers’ confidence.
Apart from that, the Group utilizes an effective quality management
system to build mutual trust with customers and suppliers, and promote
long-term partnerships.

Upholding Corporate Ethics

Policy Purpose

B B

Employee Provide employees with guidance on how to

Handbook deal with conflicts of interest and ensure they
understand the circumstance under which
they should exercise caution

(EIFM) RETRHEMAEEMNZEROES - BERE
THREZIBETENER

Code of Ethics Remind and require employees to pay

attention to their conduct by setting out the
Group’s business ethical principles and
requirements.
HEREENFEERRALESR  RERE
RETEIEBETR -

(BZEETRD

The Group has always adhered to high standards of business ethics,
preventing corruption through corporate governance, internal controls
and risk management, and is subject to ongoing oversight by the Board
of Directors. To ensure that all employees of the Group are able to
maintain a good sense of integrity at work, the Group has formulated
the “Employee Handbook” and the “Code of Ethics” that sets out
guidelines in areas such as anti-corruption and anti-bribery.

To further safeguard the integrity, the Group adopts standard operating
procedures. All employees and business partners could report
suspected breaches of anti-corruption standards or other unethical
behaviour anonymously to the HR department or other relevant
departments by telephone or email. Investigation will be carried out and
handled according to internal and external regulations

B EREE

AEBEFRERKBUNERILEERRENE
BEL - Rz AEENBERNEE
EEBAERPRMHEREVEE  RER
HISER AR -

BRiFhEERE
Content
AAE

Contain the code and guidelines for handling
conflict of interest are summarized and all
employees should avoid any situations that
constitute conflict of interest

Bt B2 IR N 2 B RV E R K46 5| - 288
R AT A R A =B R

o
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Contain general guidelines for conducting the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries
consistent with the highest standards of
business ethics.
BEERESHEERTERRALA REM
BRRIEBFH—ARIES] -
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Developing High-Quality Services

Policy
BX

Purpose

B

Project Management
Guidelines
(IiREBEEESD

Ensure and enhance the quality of
construction
BRNESELES
Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics

Remind and required employees to maintain
the confidentiality of information

(BETREBRESTRD REMERE THEMRE

Technology Ensure that the data provider understands
Resources and agrees with the Group’s use and
Use Policy handling of relevant data, and standardize

the way employees handle relevant
information.

HERBERHEEERTRAEASEEEER
BERERMEE  REE TREAMENKN

(BT B TRIE R BGRD)

The provision of high-quality products and services for customers has
always been a fundamental value of the Group. To ensure and enhance
the quality of construction, the Group employs a sound quality and
schedule control process in its daily operations, such as the “Project
Management Guidelines”.

The quality of our buildings is also a key factor to our business
development. Thus, our Project Management Team inspects and
assesses the buildings’ quality and safety. In order to ensure that the
project is carried out according to plan and standards and to avoid
significant problems occurring, all parties involved in the project meet to
review safety, environmental, schedule, design, and site coordination
issues.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BEREmMmERE
Content
RA

Set out procedures for contracting, execution
and completion of works
I TIRAB - TR TR BIRT

Set out principles of conduct in handling
company and customer information, which
provide that all employees are not allowed to
disclose any customer or internal information
and data to third parties without approval.
HINEBERAARBEPEMNITRRA REFM
BEIREHENSRAE=FRETMNZT,P K
NEBE KL S B -

Describe the ways and principles of the
Group’s collection and processing of personal
data of customers and others, including
collection for use and disposal.
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The Group believe that customers’ feedback guides improvements in
the customer experience and brings positive changes to our business.
All customer comments are discussed with the relevant departments,
including our Project Management Team. The Group will continue to
evaluate customer feedback, review our services, as well as to take
their suggestions into account. During the Reporting Period, the Group
received no complaints from customers.

Under the digital transformation, the construction industry continues to
deepen data management, and continuously improves and adopts
advanced technologies and information systems to enhance operational
efficiency. The Group adopts cyber security defence equipment such as
network monitoring, hacker detection and vulnerability scanning
systems to ensure network communication, data and personal data
security.

The Group respects all intellectual property rights (“IPR”), and their
owners, and is committed to ensuring all IPR is effectively protected in
our business operations. Any inadvertent leakage of customers’
personal information in the course of operation will have a serious
impact on the Group’s reputation and operations, and may even bring
other financial losses. Thus, to strengthen the management of IPR, the
Group has the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Technology
Resources Use Policy in place to standardize the management,
maintenance and monitoring of intellectual property rights.

AEBEHREEPHNREGSIEEFPERN
B UARMNEBSRERNEC - H
EPERYERABMM(REREEREE
BOETR® AEBEREETFETFPOR
5 R RANRE - UEBEES - NR
FHR - AEETEREREFRF -

EHHEAT  BEXTEIRCBERER
BTG N 2R BT B R AR - AR
BEME  AEERBEEEE  RER
A RAREERERE L2 ERE  #E
RAQERBE  BEREAAERZE -

AEEBEMENBER((NRERE])) LE
B’BEA  BORFERME MBERERMIN
EKeBEBP X ARRE - (ERAELEBE
PREREEFEAEHN  HHAKENE
BEREEENBEYE  EEFETREM
MFIER - At > BIRABEEEE - K
SEEHIE(HETRRBR TR k(R
BRERBER)  RENMBERNEE - #iE

MESHE

BUIHMSERERAT 2022 FERSE

29



30

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - #HERERKRE

Promoting Sustainability in the Supply Chain

Policy Purpose
HE BH
Engineering Provide standards and guidelines for

Procurement and
Subcontracting
Guidelines

(IRERBREDHES) RELEFEBESENTERIES

working with suppliers

Code of Ethics Describe the requirements for suppliers are
clearly listed to ensure that employees can
select suppliers in a prudent and fair manner

RS SRR B5K - IR B TR
B AP@EE e

(BRERTAD

Sustainable Supply
Chain Management
Policy Statement
(AIFsE e g
BEREBH)

List out the unified set of sustainability
values and implementation standards the
Group upholds in the supply chain

FIH A EEEHEREFREN—ER A
SEEREENRERER

While the Group continues to develop, the performance of our suppliers
and contractors is also closely related to our operations. Therefore, the
Group selects and evaluates suppliers and contractors based on
standardized criteria, and formulates and implements the “Engineering
Procurement and Subcontracting Guidelines” which have specified the
guidelines for working with suppliers.

To manage environmental and social risks in the supply chain, the
Project Management Team is responsible for the evaluation and
selection of suppliers based on commercial terms, cost, reputation,
quality assurance, business management model and business coverage
area. At the same time, potential suppliers are required to comply with
the Group’s “Code of Ethics”, which sets out the requirements for
suppliers in terms of maintaining ethical behaviour and ensuring project
safety as a condition of business. The Project Management Team is
also involved in adapting the procurement guidelines and suppliers’
code of ethics as appropriate to market needs.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

REREEUSFEER

Content
RA

List out the specific application and execution
process of different methods such as invitation
to tender, direct commissioning, and strategic
procurement

FIHBE  BEEZ  BREREBSETRARD
BREARHTHBIZ

Set out the requirements for suppliers in terms
of maintaining ethical behaviour and ensuring
project safety as a condition of business
REREHEERBRTARERIERZ2E
REBIGH T ERENR

Specify our commitment to supplier ESG risk
reviews, the use of green products and regular
communication and feedback with suppliers
AIAR P BRI ESG R ERN - ARG EE
A DA B2 B2 R 7 ) T R i K S BB B ARG
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Additionally, with the aim of protecting the resources of the earth, the
Group has in place the Sustainable Supply Chain Management Policy
Statement, which outlines the Group’s commitment to supplier ESG risk
reviews, the use of green products and regular communication and
feedback with suppliers. As a further step to incorporate the concept of
sustainable development into our supply chain, the Group strengthens
the management of suppliers” environmental and social responsibilities
by giving priority to business partners with outstanding sustainability
performance as well as giving preference to environmentally friendly
suppliers.

Improving Environmental Performance

The Group is aware of the potential environmental impacts that may
arise during its operations, and strives to mitigate these risks by taking
measures to reduce damage to the environment. It has implemented a
range of initiatives, such as energy efficiency measures, waste
management strategies and pollution prevention plans, which help meet
its sustainability goals. By taking those measures in an effective
manner, the Group has thoroughly implemented an environmental
management system that allows it in monitoring its performance and
ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Policy
B

Purpose
B W

Environmental
Protection Policy

Provide guidance on how the Group will
reduce its environmental footprint and

Statement promote sustainability
CRRBERER) SRS B fADR DR IR R B MR E P R B R

RHESl
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Content
RE

Outline specific goals and actions, such as
reducing carbon emissions, improving
resource efficiency and preventing
environmental pollution, as well as information
about monitoring and enforcement measures
that can help ensure compliance
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Reducing Emissions
Air Pollutant Emissions

The Group’s air pollutant emissions for the Reporting Period came
primarily from usage of gasoline fuel in vehicles. This pollution primarily
consisted of nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and Respirable
Suspended Particulates (RSP). Total air emissions were 0.62 kg (0.59
kg in 2021). This was approximately 0.010 kg per employee, which is
the same amount compared to the previous year.

The Group is dedicated to perform its corporate responsibility to reduce
air pollutant emissions in order to improve environmental sustainability.
All its vehicles are regularly checked and maintained in a timely manner
to ensure energy efficiency and reduce fuel consumption. Besides, the
drivers of the Group are required to plan routes for the shortest distance
in advance and to prevent idling of vehicle engines to reduce
unnecessary fuel consumption.

In addition, the Group takes a proactive approach to reducing or
eliminating dust pollution in its construction sites. For instance, it cuts
recycled plastic containers in half to make lids for covering exposed
surfaces and preventing dust from spreading when machines are in use.
Additionally, equipment and machinery are regularly maintained to
ensure that they do not release excessive dust into the environment.
With these preventive measures in place, the Group can reduce its
impact on air quality and protect the health of its employees and nearby
communities.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions, including carbon dioxide (CO,),
methane (CH,), nitrous oxide (N,O) and some fluorinated gases, are the
major contributor of global warming. The Group adheres to the ESG
Guide, maintaining annual accounting of Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG
emission. The operation of its vehicles contributes directly to GHG
emissions. In addition to direct sources, the indirect source included in
the accounting is electricity purchased from electricity suppliers.
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During the Reporting Period, total GHG emissions amounted to 32.04
tonnes (2021: 32.69 tonnes) and approximately 0.525 tonnes per
employee (2021: 0.554 tonnes per employee). Compared to last, total
GHG emissions decreased by approximately 2.0% and the related
intensity decreased by approximately 3.6%. This decrease can be
attributed to the Group’s efforts in encouraging employees to carpool
together when they go out at the same time at nearby locations, thereby
reducing the use of company vehicles. As a result, total direct GHG
emissions decreased from 3.72 tonnes to 2.65 tonnes, a decrease of
approximately 28.8% compared to last year. However, total indirect
GHG emissions from purchased electricity rose from 28.97 tonnes to
29.39 tonnes, a slight increase of approximately 1.4% compared to the
previous year. This was mainly due to an increase in government project
bids, which require more project staff to spend longer hours in the office
to prepare paper documents, resulting in increased electricity usage.

The changes in the proportion of each emission source are shown in
the chart below. The Group will continue to monitor the carbon
footprints of its business operations in order to reduce the adverse
impact on environment.

GHG Emissions 2021
2021 R ERBEHERN

11%

89%
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GHG Emissions 2022
20225 B E R BB HEK

8%

92%

B Scope1 Direct Emissions from mobile combustion sources

HENBEIREIRN BIER

Scope 2 Indirect emissions from purchased electricity

FE2HNEE ) e BER

There are several initiatives to reduce GHG emissions that have been
implemented to demonstrate the Group’s commitment to maintaining
environmental sustainability. The Group uses vehicles with lower
emissions of air pollutants and GHGs. To promote the reduction of
indirect emissions from electricity consumption, the Group encourages
its employees to turn off all unused appliances to avoid waste. In
addition, power saving labels have been posted in offices to promote
the reduction of energy consumption.
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Concerning air pollutant and GHG emissions, the Group aims to
continue to implement the above practices and actively track their
performance in order to better develop management plans and
strategies. In addition, the Group will continue to promote
environmental protection awareness among its employees in order to
improve overall participation and efficiency in environmental protection
measures. In hopes of these measures, emissions could be further
reduced in the upcoming future for lowering environmental impact of
the Group from its operation.

Waste

The Group generated mainly domestic waste and waste paper. These
wastes are disposed of by approved sanitation service providers, sent
to landfills, or recycled for further use. The total weight of non-
hazardous waste disposed of during the Reporting Period was 0.56
tonnes (2021: 0.52 tonnes), with an intensity of 0.009 tonnes per
employee (2021: 0.009 tonnes per employee). Total non-hazardous
waste disposed of increased by approximately 7.7% compared to the
previous year. The increase can be attributed to several factors. Firstly,
the amount of time project staff spent in the office increased, resulting
in more waste being generated. Secondly, employees cleaning out
unnecessary and old items due to office moves also contributed to the
increase. As in previous years, there was no hazardous waste involved
during the Reporting Period.

In an effort to reduce waste paper generation, the Group encourages
paperless offices and the reuse of single-sided printing paper. In
addition, to reduce plastic waste, the Group uses biodegradable and
washable straws, tableware, cups and food containers whenever
possible. The Group will continue to strive for whittling down the waste
produced and hence further reduce the negative impact on the
environment.

While the generation of waste is inevitable in the Group’s operations,
the Group aims to continuously promote employee awareness to
reduce waste and explore more initiatives for waste recycling in the
offices. In addition, as part of the construction industry, the Group will
also explore more good practices in waste management such as
reusing materials during project constructions, thereby assisting in
reducing the environmental footprint of construction projects throughout
their whole life cycle.
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Preserving Resources

The Group focuses on the intensive and economical use of resources
and advocate an environmentally friendly office, which greatly reduces
the consumption of resources and thus the damage to the environment.
In terms of electricity use, the Group requires employees to turn off all
electricity-using equipment before the end of the day, set the operating
conditions and temperature standards for air conditioners, and post
warm tips on saving electricity to help employees raise their awareness
of environmental protection. In terms of paper use, the Group
encourages employees to communicate via email and other online
methods to reduce paper consumption, to print on both sides as much
as possible, and to recycle the printed paper as notepad. For usage of
water, the Group puts up water conservation tips and posters in hand-
washing areas, strengthen the daily maintenance and management of
water equipment, and timely repair damaged water supply pipes and
facilities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed 9.67 MWh of
gasoline and 47.40 MWh of electricity. A 34.2% increase in electricity
consumption compared to the previous year was due to the renovation
of new office. Total water consumption was 115.00 cubic metres, a
decrease of 11.8% compared to 2021. The use of paper has also
decreased by 11.1%.

The Group will continue to actively implement the above-mentioned
resource saving measures aiming to raise the overall efficiency in
resource use and avoid unnecessary waste as much as possible. It will
also track its performance to set more specific quantitative
environmental targets and corresponding measures to keep pace with
its overall sustainability vision.

REER

AEBEBITEERNENHORA  RERR
PR RKBDEREEM R IRAREE -
FARAEFA AEEZRKEB T THAIEERM
ERERE RTEEHEBTHRERLEE
% RBEFERRZIETR  HPBETIRSERR
BHoEALIE AEEBEETERE
N EHNER ROBARE 2R
FTED - WHEIT N8 AR B E AR B A -
FEAKAE  ANEEFEEFRKRAEEKIETR
MEH - RAKEENABEENER -
MEHEEBIE MK E BNRIE -

REREHRN - NEEHEFE.67 KR AH
M ATAQKERME S - BRI AEEES -
HEEREFIENN3M42% - BRAKES
115.00 37 /73K - 82021 F52 11.8% - A4
SITEAL11.1% ©

AEBE G EERGRHET DREREBOERE
URABEBERMNAUE  RERRETVE
HORE - HTVEMGEW - UHEEARNE
ERE B R MAAEEE - AR EEEBAR
BERRES -
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Contributing to a Green Community

By gradually incorporating environmental considerations into its
business strategy, the Group aims to become an environmentally
sustainable enterprise. In the coming years, the Group will continue to
promote the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions, the conservation
of energy and water resources, and the efficient use of natural
resources. The Group will also strengthen the comprehensiveness of its
internal environmental management system with reference to local and
international guidelines to further reduce the environmental impact of its
business operations.

Moreover, the Group has been promoting environmental awareness and
behavior not only among its employees, but also in its supply chain.
Guided by Environmental Policy Statement and Sustainable Supply
Chain Management Policy Statement, when selecting suppliers, the
Group will ensure that its expectations on relevant social and
environmental issues are communicated so that its values are aligned;
and when selecting subcontractors, the Group will use environmental
performance as a key evaluation criterion. The Group believes that not
only can raising environmental awareness and reinforcing the positive
behavioral changes of the supply chain brings benefits to its own
operations, but also to a green community that fosters the health and
wellbeing of human beings.
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PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW EEHNE
Environmental IRIB

Key environmental performance indicators 2022 2021

BRRRENIEE 2022 & 2021 £

Air Pollutant emissions? % &5 24 ¥ 1 2

NO, A&t 0.57 0.53 1.983 kg T35
SO. &ty 0.01 0.02 0.02 kg¥F3
RSP AJ R A S8)F RERL 1) 0.04 0.04 0.64°% kg T3
GHG Emissions ;2 Z R B 5K
Scope 1 Direct emissions 2.65 3.72 3.05 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
HE1EEHR M_S(iEE
Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions 29.39 4 28.97 4 8.26 ° tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
#HE 28 RE R M_8(iEE
Total GHG emissions 32.04 32.69 11.31  tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
D = /ml;.;ﬁ ﬁFB&(E ¢E %ﬂ: ))E\;?E
GHG |ntenS|ty (by area) 0.013 0.015 0.005 tonnes of carbon dioxide
BRERBEE (ZEE) equivalent/sgqm

M-_f(irEe/ FHA
GHG intensity (by employee) 0.525 0.554 0.155 tonnes of carbon dioxide
BRERBEE(ZES) equivalent/employee

M_altiEE &R
Hazardous waste 5 EREEY)
Total hazardous waste B EEEZENRBE (] 0 0 tonnes A
Hazardous waste intensity (by area) (] 0 0 tonnes/sqm Mg, 77 K
RERENEE (REE)
Hazardous waste intensity (by employee) 0 0 0 tonnes/employee i, & &

EEEEYTE (LER)
Non-hazardous waste EEEZEY)

Total non-hazardous waste EZEZEYES 0.56 0.52 1.08 tonnes [t

Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area) 0.228 0.239 15 tonnes/’000 sgm
BEEEZWEE (RER) B,/ F¥HK
Non-hazardous waste intensity (oy employee) 0.009 0.009 0.015 tonnes/employee i,/ {& 8

BEREENTE (RES)
Energy Consumption #55 H %

Petrol /7 9.67 12.88 10.54 MWh JKEL&%
Electricity & /7 47.40 35.33 10.44 © MWh JKEL B
Total energy consumption &5 H #5428 £ 57.07 48.21 20.98 MWh JkE B
Energy intensity (by area) 25 % & (JRETE) 0.023 0.022 0.010 MWh/sqm JEFLE /F 77K
Energy intensity (by employee) 82/ %E (JZEE) 0.935 0.817 0.287  MWh/employee JKELEs /& &
Water Consumption fK
Total water consumption 7k #E 115.00 130.45 287.23° méi K
Water intensity (by area) /K% & (X @) 0.047 0.060 0.228 mé/sqm 3 J7 5K,/ F 7K
Water intensity (oy employee) FI/k% & (1B 8) 1.885 2.224 3.935 m¥employee L 5K, BE
2 Emission factor is referenced to HKEx “How to prepare an ESG Report — 2 HEMEAF2ERBRF A HEESGHRE
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. — MigR2  IRIRBARIEBUBIZMIERIES] | o
3 Distance travelled by vehicles is estimated in terms of fuel consumption based 3 EWMTEEHREEERT I EZNERER
on the Energy Utilisation Index — Transport Sector of the Hong Kong Electrical — BERUEREIRIZ - IR E RS RE -

and Mechanical Services Department.
4 Emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity of the offices and 4 KAWNENEEEE EENEERE -

warehouse.
5 Emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity of the warehouse. 5 KEREEEEENENE -
6 Data is only available for the warehouse. 6 HREHANEE -
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Social HE
Key social performance indicators 2022 2021 2020
BETESERER 2022 F 2021 4F 2020 &
Total employees” [EE & &7
By gender 151 Male B 1% 50 48 61
Female Z 1 11 11 12
By age group F#:48 5] Under 30 30 5% A T 7 9 12
30-50 30 =50 7% 36 37 49
Over 50 50 5% A 18 13 12
By employment type {E{E 481! Full-time 2B 57 53 64
Part-time 7% 5% 4 6 9
Total #t&t 61 59 73
Total subcontractor workers® HBE T AAE?s
By gender 17 Male 1% 33 40 11
Female &It 1 0 0
By age group F#: 4 7) Under 30 30554 T~ 7 9 0
30-50 30 =50 7%, 24 28 9
Over 50 50 5 A 3 3 2
Total 5+ 34 40 11
Employee turnover rate & T %k =
By gender 17 Male 1% 10.2% 38.5% 30.9%
Female 1% 0.0% 8.7% 0.0%
By age group F#: 4 7) Under 30 3055 A T~ 0.0% 38.1% 32.0%
30-50 30 =50 7%, 8.3% 34.9% 17.8%
Over 50 50 57 A £ 12.1% 24.0% 48.3%
Total #£&t 8.3% 33.3% 26.4%
Health and safety®* @ E R &% % °
Work-related injuries (employees) 0 4 1
TERZE{RE)
Lost days due to work-related injuries o 33 2
(employees)
ATHEEZR(EE)EXITIEAH
Work-related injuries (subcontractor workers) o 1 1
TEHEREZGEBEEIA)
Lost days due to work-related injuries o 1 25
(subcontractor workers)
AIBERGREEIA)EBRIEAH
7 All employees are in Macau. 7 P I B #BRLARPT -
8 All subcontractor are full-time and in Macau. 8 FBABE AR B REP -
° There were no work-related fatalities in the past three years (including the ¢ RBE=F(RERESH) AN - WERTIEBER

Reporting Period). HERHIFET o
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Key social performance indicators

BRRELEENIER

Percentage of employees trained Zi|{EEF St

2022
2022 £

2021
20214

2020
2020 €

By gender 131 Male 5% 14.0% 60.4% 18.0%
Female 22 1% 18.2% 72.7% 16.7%
By employee category B 1E48 7 Front-line employees 6.0% 55.1% 12.7%
—REE
Junior Management 0.0% 100.0% 0.0%
TREREANE
Mid-level Management 33.3% 100.0% 0.0%
FREREAR
Senior Management 83.3% 100.0% 83.3%
SREBEAE
Total 5t 14.8% 62.7% 17.8%
Average training hours 195 3|5 &
By gender 1 5l Male F1# 3.54 7.33 8.14
Female %% 4.73 6.00 6.00
By employee category {& & %8 7l Front-line employees 0.18 2.81 4.13
—#REE
Junior Management 0.00 2.00 0.00
RERANE
Mid-level Management 2.00 2.00 0.00
FREEAE
Senior Management 35.67 29.42 13.7
BREREAR
Total #5t 3.75 7.04 7.81
Total suppliers it FERT & &
By region i [& Macau 29 94 163 105
Others'0 H ff1 10 35 31 39
Total # 5+ 129 194 144
Anti-corruption Training'! X &35 3 11
Total training hours of employees received - 50 -
RIS
Total training hours of employees received - 10 -
1B B X8
Total H5t - 60 -

Including Hong Kong and Mainland China.

The Group continuously encourages its staff to study the “Corruption
Prevention Tips for Private Companies” issued by the Macau Independent
Commission Against Corruption, as well as the internal anti-corruption policies.
However, no statistics were kept on the amount of time employees spent

studying these materials during the Year.

© BEEBRRERS -

0 REEEAEE T BT mRr R A B R
BT DR A ) BA R PO 5 R S BB
5 AT AERRAGBTES LHES
BB -
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT B XFrIEiE - HE R T8
INDEX &35 g

Aspects Description Page/Remark

= E:pus BIR

A1 Emissions

AR
General Disclosure Information on: 18-20, 31
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
— MR EE BHEERIBRERBHN - MKRIaBEEs - BER
BERRYNELSH
(@ Xk
(b) BTHETATEAXENHBEZRROIINE
¥ e
Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 37
A1.1 PR AR BRI BUE -
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 37
greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.
A1.2 BEE(SBE)REEREEZE(SE2)AERBHMREE -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 37
A1.3 FELNEERENEERTE -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 37
Al.4 EENEERZMRERTE -
Al1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to 31-34
achieve them.
A15 R PRET SZEVEEE B IR R ARERE L B R PR EREREV
%ﬂ% o
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 31-34

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A1.6 HMERAEERBEZEEYN A - REEMFTET AR
RE B R R R ESE L B R 28R o
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Aspects

i=JT]

A2 Use of Resources
A2 & REH

General Disclosure

—RRE
A2.1

A2.1

A2.2
A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A2.4

A2.5

A2.5

Description
it

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BREAER(BIERLIR - KEEM R IBE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity.
RERESNEER SHEERAEERTE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.
RFEKREREE ©

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

A PTET M REIR(E A E B IR R R ET|E L B IZFTER
B8R

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

Rt SKEGE A KR LR B FAEEMRERE - ARAETLA
K B R R AESEL B IRARRA TR -

Total packaging material used for finished products and
per unit produced.

HREAABRMHNEE N EBEEEMLE -

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

AREBER RRER
General Disclosure

—REE
A3.1

A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.
MIEEITAHRERRAERERERTZENBE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.
B X EDHBRERRRERNERTEREHITE -

Page/Remark
B

18-20, 31

37

37

31, 35

31, 35

There were no issues in
sourcing water fit for purpose.
SREGER KRR B ER-

The use of packaging
materials is irrelevant to the
Group’s operating
businesses.

B EE M A (50 PR B AR 52 B A A
EEGER -

36

36
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Aspects

i=JT]

A4 Climate Change
A4 RIEZ 1L

General
Disclosure

—RIEE

Ad.1

A4

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - #HERERKRE

Description
it

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

HAREH DR RS HBRTAEERENE
ARRIEEBEENBE -

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.

B RAIRE g HEITAEEZENE AR
FEEE - REHTH -
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Page/Remark
R

This issue is not
material based on
the results of
stakeholder
engagement. The
Group will continue
to adjust the
management
approach and
information
disclosure approach
in accordance with
the materiality
principle.
IRIERN AR & 2 B
BIAASR - LA

Z o AEEKESR
RIEEZ MR AT
EEFERE R
TIE e
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Aspects Description Page/Remark

=] i BHR/fEE

B1 Employment
B1{E{&
General Information on: 18-20, 24
Disclosure
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—MRIRER B R - BB REA - TIERE - R
. FE#e ok RESUREMGEFEER
RBAA -

@ HX:K

(b) BTHETABEAZENRMAZERA
I EHE o

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, 38
age group and geographical region.

B1.1 RIS - ERER - FRARMtRESHNES
BB

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group 38
and geographical region.
B1.2 RIER - FIRAR KRB DNEERKLE -
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Aspects Description Page/Remark

=] i BR

B2 Health and Safety

B2R2FEHEZ 2

General Disclosure Information on: 18-20, 23
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

— MR EE FRRHLZ2TIHERRIREREERABEEFEEN
(@ BORK: &
(b) ETFTHEITABEAXZENERERERAMNNE

* o

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 38
each of the past three years including the reporting year.

B2.1 BE=F(BEAREFE)BFRITHROABRLEX -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 38

B2.2 EATHBBRATIERS -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 23-24
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B2.3 A PTER AN B R R R B2 24676 - LA RGBT B
BIA -

B3 Development and Training

B3 /R R4

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills 26
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

—RIRE EHERAREEITIIERE MM KB EERIBUR © fHit
BFAEE

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 39
employee category.

B3.1 RUERREERNESNXIIEEB DL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 39
gender and employee category.

B3.2 RERIRESRERED - BRESTAZ I TIIRE -
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Aspects

i=JT]

B4 Labour Standards
B4 % T %8|

General Disclosure

—RRINEE

B4.1

B4.1

B4.2

B4.2

Description
it

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

ERAMEET BT
(@ B &

b) BTHETABEAZENHRBEEENR -

Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.
R BB R AR R E T REHIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

e B IE R BN HER B RIS LT IRy 2588 -

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5 it fESEE
General Disclosure

—RRINEE

B5.1
B5.1

B5.2

B5.2

B5.3

B5.3

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
EIRMHEENRE R ERBREOBER o

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

mEE S MHEERHKE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR RHEERNIED - EERTEAEIHE
BEE - ARABRRITRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

it AR BRI I B R IRIE Rt 2 R AV IE R - DA KRAE
FITRERTTE -

Page/Remark
R

18-20, 25

The Group did not encounter
such practices during the
Reporting Period.
AEBEREHRRBE I IE
O

30-31

39

30-31

30-31
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Aspects Description

Page/Remark

=ge] Eipus

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally

preferable products and services when selecting

suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 i RE R R R 2 2 BIRIRE f RGO BB -
ARAERBARITRER A

B6 Product Responsibility

B6 Em&EE

General Disclosure Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

— MR FRMREERNRENERELZ S - BE  RERL
B H LA RMROT AR -
(@ BxR: X
(b) BTFTHBETABEAZENHBEEZLROIINE

¥ o

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

B6.1 B E N EXRE m AR % 2 B FIE AR YA
Bk e

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

B6.2 BN E M MIREHIRFEE A REE7E

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.3 T i B 4 o T AR PR NG EE M R A V1B MR o

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

B6.4 H i E S REBRE T REmEBIYIET °

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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31

18-20, 28

The issue is irrelevant to the
Group’s operating
businesses.

AR BB TSR o

29

29

The Group was not involved
in any recall procedures.

REEAH RAEAIEWAEF -
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Aspects

i=JT]

B6.5

B6.5

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 XRE’S

General Disclosure

— B

B7.1

B7.1

B7.2

B7.2

B7.3

B7.3

Description
it

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HHE B E ERHRIE RALBECR - ARABERTRER
Tk e

Information on:
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BEM LB - 1R - REFREER :
(a BURK: &

(b) BFUBTAEEALEORMEEREHINE
# o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RBEREETAIEEERLNEGHEE SHE TAEH
AR BB MREAER o

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

T R B WET - ARBERITRERTE -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
fimEE R E TRENRETE

Page/Remark
R

29

18-20, 27

18-20

27

39
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Aspects Description Page/Remark

=] i BHR/fEE

B8 Community Investment

B8 ERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the This issue is not material
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and  based on the results of
to ensure its activities take into consideration the stakeholder engagement. The
communities’ interests. Group will continue to adjust
the management approach
and information disclosure
approach in accordance with
the materiality principle.
—RIREE ERAME2ENEE  EETREEMEHENTE REMNZEBESRNER -
Wi R EEITEB GRS E B[R o EFEY TEE - REE K&
= iy = = =
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. i;ﬁifiziidﬁg RS
B8.1 B ERE - AREEEA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER INFORMATION

SEEARHIBER

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and
quality of disclosure in order to enhance the Shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company aims to achieve high standards of corporate governance
which is crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code in force from time to time (“CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance. During the Year, Company has applied the principles of
good corporate governance and complied with the code provisions as
set out in Part 2 of the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code. Code provision C.2.1
stipulates that the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (“Mr. Cheong”) is currently the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. In view of the fact that Mr.
Cheong has been assuming the responsibilities in the overall
management and supervision of the daily operations of the Group since
the establishment of Kento Engineering in January 2011, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Cheong
taking up both roles for effective management and operations.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from such code
provision is appropriate. Notwithstanding such deviation, the Board is
of the view that this management structure is effective for the Group’s
operations and sufficient checks and balances are in place.

PURPOSE, VALUES AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to ensuring that its business is conducted
in accordance with its culture and values in maintaining our integrity,
humility, teamwork, continuity and high ethical standards to achieve its
long-term objective which is a sustainable development for the Group.
By doing so, the Company believes that shareholder value will be
maximised in the long term and that its employees, those with whom it
does business and the communities in which it operates will all benefit.
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The Company has always committed to promote the principles of good
corporate governance. These principles highlight effective board, good
management and internal control systems and its transparency and
accountability. The Board considers such commitment balanced the
interests of the stakeholders and the Group as a whole. The Company
ensures that the corporate culture and expected behaviours are clearly
communicated to everyone in the Group. Appropriate policies and
procedures are in place to promote and reinforce the need for
employees and others who deal with the Company to act with honesty
and integrity.

Having regard to the corporate culture reflected in the policies and
practices of the Company, the Board is satisfied that the purpose,
values and strategic directions of the Company are aligned with its
culture.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code for the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”). Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, in considering the
declaration and payment of dividends, the Board shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements
and future business growth and take into account the following factors
of the Group:

a. the Group’s results of operations;

b.  cash flows and financial conditions;

c.  operating and capital requirements;

d.  statutory and regulatory restrictions;

e.  future prospects (if any); and

f. any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.
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The Board has discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, subject to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) and the applicable laws and regulations.
The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the
operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim
results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group.
In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, the Board consists of five Directors including two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leong Kam Leng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Kit
Mr. Law Lap Tak
Ms. Lee Sze Ming

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the
Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills and
experience for effective leadership. The biographical information of the
Directors is set out on pages 69 to 76 under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
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Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contributions
to the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors namely, Mr. Cheong Ka Wo, Mr. Leong Kam Leng, Mr.
Chan Ming Kit, Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee Sze Ming, have
participated in continuous professional development and provided to
the Company a record of trainings they received for the Year.

The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is
summarised below:

Name of Directors

ES=ET

RECEERTATANEXFECAAGK =
REZE2HEBEEXERR NBEREH

HATS R AL - TR T AR T
ERIEL BN AR -

E2RER(AKREMEL - REKELE - R
L BREAEERFTRIERL)HELHE
FEZXRRE YCRAXFAREBENAN
FEADEZNEIICE -

NTHARFEEEETCEINEAFZIIE

Attending
seminars/reading
materials
relevant to the
director’s duties
HE
FRESHKN
e BEIE

Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) REM(F/EHEEHNTE) v/
Leong Kam Leng P v
Chan Ming Kit PR EA v
Law Lap Tak = v
Lee Sze Ming B8 v/
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer TENITHREAR
Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities (M 24 ASFRIE X EC2.11EETF =

between the chairman and the chief executive officer to be segregated.

Mr. Cheong is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Cheong has been assuming the
responsibilities in the overall management and supervision of the daily
operations of the Group since the establishment of Kento Engineering
in January 2011, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Cheong taking up both roles for effective
management and operations. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
deviation from such code provision is appropriate. Code provision C.2.7
of the CG Code requires that the Chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without the
other executive Directors present. During the Year and up to the date of
this report, Mr. Cheong held two meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of the other executive
Director.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association.
Further details of the term of appointment of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report
— Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters Of Appointment” of this
report.

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
legal, accounting and finance. With their experience gained from various
sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective discharge of
the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-
executive Director gave a confirmation of his independence to the
Company, and the Company considered each of them is independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies
of the Group, setting objectives and business development plans,
assuming responsibility of corporate governance and monitoring the
performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors, is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established by
the Board and reporting on the Group’s operations to the Board on a
regular basis to ensure effective performance of the Board’s
responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s
senior management to fulfill their duties and they have been provided
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial
position to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.
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The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the Board, including providing the Directors with
sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall seek, at the Group’s
expense, independent professional advice to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties if necessary.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-
executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the Board, such
that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, are
given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and express
their views to the Board and have separate and independent access to
the management of the Group in order to make informed decisions. The
chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors without the involvement of other Directors at least
annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director will be
required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and abstain
from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the Board
meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are

effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to
the Board during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the
Board and is committed to enhancing quality of opportunity in all
aspects of its business. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration against a range of objective criteria, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Company
will also take into consideration its own business model and specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”). The Nomination Committee will make recommendations
to the Board on measurable objectives for achieving diversity of the
Board and monitor the progress on achieving the objectives.

With regard to gender diversity on the Board, the Company recognizes
the particular importance of gender diversity. As at 31 December 2022,
the Board comprises one female Director and four male Directors.
Hence, we consider gender diversity has been achieved based on the
current female representation of approximately 20% at the Board level
and targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation. The Company will ensure that gender diversity is taken
into account when recruiting staff members of mid to senior level and
ensure that sufficient resources are available for providing appropriate
trainings and career development to develop a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board and maintain gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be
discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas and accompanying papers
shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board meeting to
ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review the
documents.

The Board held 7 meetings and one annual general meeting during the
Year. The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings
and annual general meeting held during the Year is set out below:

Name of Directors

=
EeEAEBFANETEHETELOR
Exggs MAEFSVTERMNBAA
ERBTAMELTHREELRES &
PREFARGHFERULREESENER
HETIRNEE - RREMMNEXHERE
ZRERAMIMEL ZRERES - U
REFHREHEENEBXXT

RAFE EFGHBTTTIREER KX
BRBAFARE - TRHJESEFHRRAF
ERTZEZTEEZMERBFAGHRE

Attendance/Number of
meeting held

HEBITEBRRH

Annual
general
meeting

RRBFARG

Board
meetings

Exgas

Executive Directors BITES

Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) EaM(EEHFEEHTE) 777 11
Leong Kam Leng B 7/7 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES

Chan Ming Kit PR B8 14 7/7 11
Law Lap Tak ENE 7/7 1/1
Lee Sze Ming RIS 7/7 1/1

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection by the Directors.
Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of relevant actions against its Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 21 August 2020 which currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lee Sze Ming (as
chairlady), Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Mr. Law Lap Tak. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include, but
are not limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition and
diversity (including the skills, knowledge, educational background,
experience and diversity) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board in the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; and (c) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In considering the composition of the Board, the Board diversity will
been considered from a number of perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director in accordance
with the Board Diversity Policy. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year to review
the structure, composition, size and diversity of the Board with
reference to the Board Diversity Policy and nomination policy and make
relevant recommendation to the Board, which included the re-election
of retiring Directors.

Name of Members

Lee Sze Ming (Chairlady) ZRE(FE)
Chan Ming Kit PREAGE
Law Lap Tak =

RAFE REZRBEERTT -RE8% 8
tE2EEEE L EBRR RRARREH
BEEENRE AR RERZTE LR
ExeFhEMAEREZS  ETEEEER
FTE=E-

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
o) X5y
SRRE

11
11
11

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with written terms
of reference on 21 August 2020 (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Ming Kit (as chairman), Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee
Sze Ming. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the model described in code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code in its terms of reference.

The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all of Directors and senior
management personnel and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the policy on such remuneration;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and approving management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (d) reviewing
and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules; and (e) making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year to RAEE  HMEE@ BT TMALH @
discuss and consider the remuneration policy of the Directors and the iR EREAEBEERSBEEENS

senior management of the Group. BAE SR o

Attendance/

Number of

meeting held

HE BT

Name of Members SRXH
Chan Ming Kit (Chairman) BREAGE(F/E) 2/2
Law Lap Tak R aNT= 2/2
Lee Sze Ming RS 2/2

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend ENEZEENSHAEEENMESERTHER
on their respective contractual terms under the employment BEBERHZENASNEZT(WNE) MARE
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the Z=egKEFMWMEEemEzE WithEFESE
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee taking into account R e &I - TEBE RS EAREFBFHKH
their skills and knowledge, their job responsibilities and level of their 25  ANEEBMHRALKBITHIREBET - &
involvement in the Group’s affairs, the performance of the Group and =ZE R SASEEBMSHFBEHNES T 5BH
the prevailing market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the  F£[{f:E10 -

Directors and senior management are set out in note 10 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration =R EIEE B B
BRERENHFMNFLATEE :

The senior management’s remuneration for the Year falls within the  K&E&E
following bands:

Number of

individuals

Nil to MOP1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 2 FF 7T 0
MOP1,000,001 to MOP2,000,000 1,000,001 382 P9 T & 2,000,000 2 F97T 3
MOP2,000,001 and above 2,000,001 89T & A 0
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference on 21 August 2020 and
currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Law Lap Tak (as chairman), Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Ms. Lee Sze
Ming. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but not
limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring
integrity of financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
and (c) reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditors regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to

o review the independence and the works done by the auditor;

° review the financial reporting system, compliance procedure,
internal control and risk management system, effectiveness of the
internal audit function and procedures and appointment of
external auditor; and

° review the annual results and annual report for the year ended 31

December 2021 and the interim results and interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2022.
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Name of Members

Law Lap Tak (Chairman) BINELE ()
Lee Se Ming PR S84 5 A&
Chan Ming Kit RIS+

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
HiE BT
SRRY

2/2
2/2
2/2

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same
will be carried out annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee
the Company’s orientation program for new Director, to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has performed the above mentioned
corporate governance functions.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditors are set out below:

BERZEGCBEAKENREAREE M
NEBERI R G ANAEZERAREEEF
EITIRET

A M 25 Wb b
3 E/ﬁﬂﬁﬁb
EERBETHEESET -

CEREABE/SBRMEHNARQRLEESR
R KR FRIAETEEE AT A REME
RAEERTE BEEARRHHEZTETH
BAEIRE BELEZEERGRERE
BHEIIRSEEERR &R ZHNE
RERRNEEMNBEENTRTAIRARTMH
(WA)  UERBHARAREEE AREN
B

WAEE  EFSCET LRERERREE -

BB

RAFE - BB AR B R EA & B &
T -

Fee paid/

payable

B ENER

MOP’000

FHEF5 T

Audit services EZR 2,002

Non-audit services* IEEIZ RIS 358

Total: #Et 2,360
* The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services. * IEFEZIRTS B RIET SRS ©
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Chan Yat Lui as its Company
Secretary. Mr. Chan Yat Lui has confirmed that for the Year, he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The
biography of Mr. Chan Yat Lui is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company is held each year and at the place as
may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an
annual general meeting, is called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose of
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a
written requisition signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
14083, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of the
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
convene a physical meeting, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

DNEWE
ARBERBEREZEERETRAWE - R
REEECHER  RAFER  REZ2MT
DR E/NE A RBEERE - BRaRtE
MEESENARE [EERSREEERE
5]~ e

BRERER

ARRABHMBERAE /BRI ESTSRIUERA
S ARBNKRRBFASEFET—
R MR EHEFEEE - SRRAE
(BERBEFRGHRIN OWBERGHIAE -

BREFARRE RS

RIFABERMAIFE S8R - MERZXERKAH
FEARB BB (M SEMATRART
BRAE ERF)ADR+ D2 —8ER —
2RZEER(EEBRR])  HEEEE
AEFSRARAWEHLERELR  BXE
EFeARRREIAS ([RREBIAE)) -
ABZIE A B RS g BRI LR IR -

BEERABRREEIAEARKREEFRE
REBZRIENRZRENESEBBREMNER
KEBEGARBRRFENZAEREREAL
REIRBEBNEZTBLE X (it AEEE
FETITBI51RERF 1421403 F)
W AN AR BIRUE -

FZEREHIAGAEREZERE2EAN
A - EFESEREAHEA221BRKRE
ETRHEREREE  RFERA(HZEB
RANABTTARERSH  BRRARES
ERELREAHEGEMARNAERER
A ARARBEEFRA



Corporate Governance and Other Information

EEEAREMER

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong Room 1403, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong by post or by email to ylchan@kento.com.mo.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director for
election as a Director, the Shareholder must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 1403, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding, the full name of the person
proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person to be proposed).
The Notice must also be accompanied by a letter of consent (the
“Letter”) signed by the person proposed to be elected on his/her
willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgment of the Notice and the Letter will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice by the Company of
the general meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Nomination Committee and the Board
to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting proposing such person to be elected as a Director.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands for Shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the Chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the notice of the AGM will be
voted by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
Shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the
following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim reports to all Shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results
on the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other
announcements and Shareholders’ circulars in accordance with

the continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

o The general meetings of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION
POLICY

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders an the Company has established various communication
channels with Shareholders, including general meeting, annual results
and interim results, annual and interim reports, announcements and
circulars and performance conference. Shareholders may also make
enquires with the Company through other channels mentioned above,
and provide comments and recommendations to the Directors or
managements at any time. Upon receipt of written enquiries from
Shareholders, the Company will make responses to the Shareholders
as soon as possible. In addition, the Company updates its website from
time to time to keep the Shareholders updated of the recent
development of the Company. The Company considers the
implementation of the Shareholders’ communication policy during 2022
was effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Board
has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
internal control systems of the Group are structured to assist in the
achievement of the Group’s goals, to safeguard the Group’s assets and
to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records and
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems, and management
has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee (and the Board) on
the effectiveness of these systems for the Year. A review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted by the Board at least annually.

Risk management

The Group has already reviewed its risk management framework and
processes and has implemented relevant measures resulting from this
exercise that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular,
the Group has developed, approved and implemented a risk
management system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The system comprises the following phases:

o Identification: 1dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Analysis: Analyze the existing control, likelihood and consequence
of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Senior management of the Group is responsible for the annual risk
reporting process. Independent external consultant assists various
members of the senior management to review and assess risks and
discuss solutions to address material internal control defects. Risks are
compiled, and ratings are assigned and mitigation plans are
documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by certain members of
the senior management and presented to the Audit Committee and the
Board for their review.
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Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business
aspects such as revenue management, expenditure management,
human resources and payroll, cash and treasury management, financial
reporting, compliance and information technology. The internal control
measures are supervised by management team including executive
Directors. The management team is responsible to identify risks and
internal control deficiencies, evaluate the internal control system of the
Group from time to time and implementing additional control measures.
Once any internal control deficiency was identified, the management
would take immediate steps to notify the Audit Committee the findings
and implement relevant internal control measures with assistance of any
independent consulting firm as appropriate. Results of the internal
assessments, internal surveys and routine inspections would be
reported to the Audit Committee of the Board, which is responsible to
review the financial information and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal controls system of the Group.

Internal audit function

The Group does not establish a standalone internal audit department,
however, the Board has put in place adequate measures to perform the
internal control review at different aspects of the Group.

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material controls
such as financial, operational and compliance controls for the Year. In
addition, the Board has appointed an internal control review consultant
to review the internal control systems of the Group on an on-going
basis. Such review shall be conducted annually. The Board considered
that the risk management and internal control systems of the Group for
the Year were effective and adequate.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside information with the
aim to ensure the insiders are abided by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside information.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE-
BLOWING POLICIES

The Group has always adhered to high standards of business ethics,
preventing corruption through corporate governance, internal controls
and risk management, and is subject to ongoing oversight by the Board
of Directors. To ensure that all employees of the Group are able to
maintain a good sense of integrity at work, the Group has formulated
the “Employee Handbook” and the “Code of Ethics” that sets out
guidelines in areas such as anti-corruption and anti-bribery.

The Group also has a whistle-blowing policy that serves the purpose of
establishing whistle-blowing procedures for employees and other
relevant external parties of our Group, in order to report and escalate
any suspicious misconducts. In accordance with the policy, the Group
protects all whistle-blowers from any kind of retaliation. All the
information provided by the whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on 21
August 2020, the Articles of Association was adopted. During the Year,
there was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo, aged 43, was appointed as a Director in October
2017 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17 April 2020.
Mr. Cheong is the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
and a director of all of the Company’s subsidiaries. He is responsible for
the overall management and supervision of the daily operations of the
Group. Mr. Cheong is entitled to a remuneration of MOP3,060,000 per
annum.

Mr. Cheong has over 20 years of experience in the electrical engineering
industry. Prior to establishing Kento Engineering in January 2011, Mr.
Cheong worked as an electrical engineer in various construction
contractors in Macau, where he commenced his career in the electrical
and engineering industry, including his role as an engineer at CAA City
Planning & Engineering Consultants Ltd. (FTig# MR 212 Ti2EM B R
A 7)), a company engaged primarily in urban planning, transportation
planning, urban renewal studies and cultural heritage studies from
October 2001 to January 2003, where he was responsible for E&M
system designs. From January 2003 to June 2004, Mr. Cheong was an
electrical engineer of Consolidated Engineering Co., Ltd. (3E T2 GR
‘A 7)), a company experienced in electrical and mechanical engineering
projects involving installation and maintenance of air conditioning
systems and electrical engineering works, where he was responsible for
management of electrical and ELV system engineering works. He was
also a technician of Institute for Tourism Studies (& F9 ik ¥ 2 F7), a
public education institute under the Macau government from July 2004
during which he was responsible for the management of engineering
works. Mr. Cheong then resumed his role at Consolidated Engineering
Co., Ltd. as an electrical engineer from May 2006 to December 2009,
where he was then responsible for management of electrical and ELV
system engineering works. From January to December 2010, he served
as an electrical engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co., Ltd. (¥13 0 L2
B R A &), a company primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical
engineering projects where he was responsible for the management of
electrical and ELV system engineering works.

Mr. Cheong obtained his bachelor degree in electromechanical
engineering from the University of Macau (Universidade de Macau) in
July 2001.
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Mr. Leong Kam Leng, aged 51, was appointed as a Director in
October 2017 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17
April 2020. Mr. Leong is also a director of all of the Company’s
subsidiaries. He is responsible for the strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Leong is entitled to a remuneration of MOP600,000 per annum.

Mr. Leong has over 30 years of experience in the electrical engineering
and maintenance industry. Prior to establishing Kento Engineering in
January 2011, Mr. Leong worked as a manager in Decoracao E
Engenharia Decol, Limitada (i& F| & = A i% & A R 2 7)) in Macau, a
company engaged in the sale and distribution of air conditioners, from
January 1991 to December 2010, where he was responsible for on-site
management and operations. Mr. Leong has also accumulated more
than 20 years of management and operational experiences in the E&M
engineering services industry under several business ventures in Macau
which he has founded.

Mr. Leong obtained a diploma on electromechanical techniques of
industrial maintenance secondary technical — professional education
(curso de técnicas de electromecéanica de manutencéo industrial do
ensino secundario complementar Técnico — profissional) from the
Luso-Chinese School of Technical Professional (Escola Luso — Chinesa
Técnico — Profissional) in June 2007. Mr. Leong obtained a
professional diploma in interior design from the University of Macau in
July 2008 and a certificate in construction safety supervisor
(Encarregado de seguranga na construgéo civil) from the University of
Macau in February 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Law Lap Tak, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and he is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Mr. Law held various positions
in an international accounting firm from July 1992 to October 1999
where he last served as a manager, responsible for audit planning and
control as well as supervision of audit staff. He joined China Rare Earth
Holdings Limited (previously named Yixing Xinwei Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
769) which is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sales of rare
earth and refractory products, as financial controller and company
secretary since November 1999, where he supervises the overall
financial management including corporate accounting, financial
reporting and regulatory compliance of the company where he has been
familiar with relevant law and regulations of a listed company as well as
the obligations and duties imposed upon directors.

Mr. Law earned his bachelor degree in business administration in
accounting from Hong Kong Baptist University (previously known as the
Hong Kong Baptist College) in December 1992. He is currently a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(previously known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) (since
November 1996), a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (since July 2001) and a member of the Institute of Public
Accountants in Australia (since March 2013).
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Ms. Lee Sze Ming, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and she is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of
experience in legal profession specialising in employees’ compensation,
personal injuries, property damage and conveyancing. Ms. Lee joined
Messrs. Lau Chan & Ko, a law firm in Hong Kong specialising in
property and conveyancing from August 2000 to September 2006
where she last served as a partner being responsible for handling
property related transactions, employees’ compensations and personal
injuries claims. She was also a partner of Messrs. Fongs (previously
known as Messrs. Fong Chan & Lee), a law firm in Hong Kong
specialising in conveyancing from September 2006 to February 2009
where she was responsible for handling property related transactions,
employees’ compensations and personal injuries claims. Ms. Lee is
currently a partner of Messrs. Rita Law & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong,
having joined the firm in March 2009 where she is responsible for
overseeing the litigation department, dealing with high value personal
injuries and employees’ compensation cases and providing legal advice
to the general public, and has developed an understanding of the legal
framework and areas of concerns of the construction industry.

Ms. Lee obtained her bachelor of laws and postgraduate certificate in
laws from The University of Hong Kong in December 1994 and
September 1995, respectively. Since December 1997 she was admitted
as a solicitor in Hong Kong.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ZRBIBL+ 5057 R2020F8 A21H &
ZAERBLIHNTES  ARERKEREF
144,000 TR € - TR TR ERERRTE
20T EREHARERE  AFE
= MEBKIRERERE T LTH2000F
8 HZE 2006 F9 A RIE = EMERT(—K
BN EMEREREIN S SEMEBLAT)
T8 HRBEBRATETAEA  AEEEE
XS BREBERAFEERE - H2006
FIHZE2009F2 A - R IFHE(EMessrs. Fongs
(B8 Messrs. Fong Chan & Lee © — 5K #F9
REXREENEEZMBBEMERBA A
EREEERS BREBERAFGEER
B ZRTHKA/BRKEMIT(—REBEM
EBFAEA B2009F3AMAZER
FTAZR » A BERFAT EESBAT
BEREEEERGUARBARRIEEEZE
B WHBEEENEAFIELEMBEIERER
AR T o

T+ o R R1994F 12 A % 199549 A &
EBKEBRFEBEST BN MEABTAEX
B B1997F 12 AR R EBISEAD
B o



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERBEFE

Mr. Chan Ming Kit, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 August 2020 and he is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, corporate finance and business valuation.
Starting from January 1993, Mr. Chan took on various roles at different
professional accounting firms, including as senior manager at various
offices in Hong Kong and the PRC of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst & Young where he was responsible
for auditing works and financial services for clients. From October 2006,
Mr. Chan took his role as director of business and financial valuations
department at Sallmanns, a corporate valuation and consultancy firm
where he was responsible for development of business valuation
services. He later assumed the position as director of Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (previously known as
Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited) in February 2008, upon the
merger of Sallmanns with Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, and was
responsible for the development of business valuation services and has
experience in providing valuation and consultancy advices to clients
including development consultancy, feasibility studies, market studies,
cost analysis and business valuations for various industries, including
the E&M industry, which enables him to understand and evaluate the
various factors, including costs, timeframe, materials, design and
methods, that are relevant to the E&M industry. Mr. Chan is now serving
as regional director of Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, being part of Jones Lang LaSalle, a Fortune 500
company and a leading professional services firm specialising in real
estate and investment management.

Mr. Chan is currently a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since December 2010 and a fellow
member of CPA Australia since May 2009. He was also elected as a
professional member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and
elected as a fellow member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
in February 2014 and July 2016, respectively.

Mr. Chan gained his bachelor of commerce from the University of
Melbourne in Australia in December 1992.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang Hong Lun, aged 40, is the head of heating, ventilation and
air-conditioning (“HVAC”) department of the Company since March
2012 and is primarily responsible for management of HVAC systems
works. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chang Hong Lun was an air
condition engineer at an experienced electrical and mechanical
engineering company, Consolidated Engineering Co. Ltd. (& T2 GR
7~ al), from October 2006 to December 2009, where he was responsible
for management of air-conditioning system. From January 2010 to
October 2011, Mr. Chang Hong Lun also served as an air condition
engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co. Ltd. (1= # T2 AR A 7)), a
company primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical engineering
projects where he was responsible for management of air-conditioning
system. Mr. Chang Hong Lun obtained his bachelor’s degree in
electrical and electronic engineering from the University of Macau
(Universidade de Macau) in October 2006. Mr. Chang Hong Lun has
become a registered professional engineer (“RPE”) in Macau since
2009.

Mr. Tai Hoi Tun, aged 41, is the head of electrical department of the
Company since December 2011 and is primarily responsible for
management of LV systems works and ELV systems works. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Tai was a mechanical engineer at Shun Heng
Construction Company Ltd. (31 # & £ & R 2 7)), a company mainly
involve in civil construction where he was responsible for management
of sub- contractors from May 2005 to August 2007. From September
2007 to December 2009, Mr. Tai was an assistant engineer in an
electrical and mechanical engineering company, Consolidated
Engineering Co. Ltd. (5 L2 HE R A 7l), where he was responsible for
management of electrical works. From January 2010 to December
2011, Mr. Tai also served as an E&M engineer at San Ka U Engineering
Co. Ltd. (F13z A L2 HR A A]), a company primarily engaged in electrical
and mechanical engineering projects where he was responsible for
management of E&M works. Mr. Tai obtained his bachelor’s degree in
mechanical engineering and automation from the South China
University of Technology in July 2004. Mr. Tai has become a RPE in
Macau since 2008.
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Ms. Wong, Joyce Kit Sin, aged 40, was appointed as the Group
finance controller on 25 November 2019 and is responsible for finance
management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wong held
various positions since April 2006 at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, a
professional accounting firm, where she left as a senior auditor in May
2008. From May 2008 to June 2011, Ms. Wong was an internal auditor
of Galaxy Casino, S. A. ()R 4435 %19 B IR 2 5]), a subsidiary owned
as to 90% by Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 27),
where her job duties include plan and budget audit assignments and
developing audit programs. Ms. Wong then joined Orient Town Project
Management Ltd. (£ 818 B & 1 F [R 2 7]), a property development
company from July 2010 to May 2011 as assistance finance manager,
where she was responsible for treasury management, preparation of
financial reports and monitoring accounting control. She was a finance
manager at Ponte 16 Group, a hotel-casino resort held as to 51% by
SJM Holdings Limited (stock code: 880) and as to 49% by Success
Universe Group Limited (& & Iz Bk B R 2 7]) (stock code: 487), from
June 2011 to October 2015, where she was responsible for preparation
of financial statements and analysis report for hotel operations. From
October 2015 to September 2018, Ms. Wong was the finance manager
of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (FF B /8 4N 3 & B IR 2 7))
(stock code: 688), where she was responsible for overseeing all finance
matters relating to property development projects and hotel business in
Macau of the company. From December 2018 to August 2019, she
served various positions with her last position as assistant financial
controller of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (35 /1E & B2 A%
BBRAF]) (stock code: 711), where she was responsible for formulating
financial models and tax planning for the new projects of the company.
Ms. Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree in business administration in
accounting from the University of Hawai’i at Manoa in August 2005. She
was admitted as a member of the CPA Australia in June 2016.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yat Lui, aged 39, was appointed as the company secretary
on 17 April 2020 and is responsible for company secretarial matters of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan served various
positions with his last position being audit supervisor at Yiu Cho Yan
Certified Public Accountant from June 2005 to May 2011. From June
2011 to November 2014, Mr. Chan was a senior accountant in the
corporate recovery department in KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Certified Public
Accountants and was subsequently promoted to manager in the same
firm. From January 2015 to December 2015, he returned to Yiu Cho Yan
Certified Public Accountant serving as an audit manager. He served as
the financial controller and company secretary of Super Strong Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 8262) from January 2016, and resigned from the
position of company secretary and financial controller on 26 September
2017 and on 13 October 2017, respectively. He was also a company
secretary of Shanghai Realway Capital Assets Management Co., Ltd., a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 1835), from November 2018 to October 2019.
Since November 2019, Mr. Chan has been appointed as a director of
Frank Forensic and Corporate Recovery Limited, a company primarily
engaged in providing financial investigations, forensic accounting,
expert witness and litigation support, corporate rescue and recovery,
and internal compliance advisory services where he is responsible for
leading company liquidations, personal bankruptcy cases, forensic
investigations, receiverships and compliance advisory engagements.
Mr. Chan has been a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 2010, and is currently a
certified tax adviser (non-practising) of the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan obtained an associate degree in business
administration in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2005.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERE

The Directors are pleased to present this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering services works in
Macau.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development, as well as a discussion on
the Group’s performance during the Year are provided in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 8. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the Group’s operations, many of
which are beyond the Group’s control, including but not limited to those
relating to its business and the industry. Some of the major risks facing
the Group include the following:

o the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each
project, which in turn is based on the estimated costs and time to

be involved

° the Company requires various registrations, licenses and
certifications to operate the Group’s business in Macau

° personal injuries, property damages or fatal accidents may occur
at work sites

° any changes in environmental requirements may increase the
Group’s compliance costs

° the Group operates in a competitive E&M services industry

Detailed discussion of the risk factors is set out in the section headed
“Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Environment, Social and Governance Report of the Company for
the Year contained the information required under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules is set out on pages 16 to 48 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets
of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring
environment to employees and emphasis the personal development of
its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers,
subcontractors and suppliers. The Group aims to continue providing
quality services to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy
with its subcontractors and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 102.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a Final Dividend of 1.08 cents (2022:
HK2.03 cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Upon the approval by the Shareholders, the Final Dividend are expected
to be paid on or around Friday, 23 June 2023.

As at 31 December 2022, there was no arrangement under which a
Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation (2021:
Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR THE AGM AND THE FINAL DIVIDEND

The AGM is scheduled to be convened and held on Wednesday, 24
May 2023. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 19 May 2023 to Wednesday, 24 May 2023 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of the Shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre,16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18
May 2023.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the AGM, the Final
Dividend will be payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company as at the close of business on
Tuesday, 6 June 2023. For the purpose of determining the entitlement
of the Shareholders to the Final Dividend, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Thursday, 1 June 2023 to Tuesday, 6
June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the
Shares will be registered. In order for the Shareholders to qualify for the
proposed Final Dividend, all properly completed share transfer forms
together with the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre,16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong for registration, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31
May 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately MOP81.9
million.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the Year are set
out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when this Directors’ Report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)
(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 196 of this report.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EEIN

REEABRABEFITRHNER A BT RKRN
723 e

BrLBEEHE

MEERARKRASES (AR R FEMAKL
FTERBDERRE ) ERL BRTEARABER
HEPIRRAERREENBRNELBEERNE
Y o

BBERER

AR BTN - BRI M E R M &S
ERRERSR -

BE HEIWEEARALE
M 58 &

REE > KRG ETAHE R ERE
g HESEREAAAR EHES -

EERFRERX

ARREREESEREREEE LAY E
TEEHELEHBFEENLIZTH AESF
FEABRENEREHEERRETH - AR
EEFZHNBETFBEGEUREA RER(FH
BEDIE 6228 ) FATOIGHIRMENESRE
MESHRE LB ARG (B EFF622F)
25.391(1)(a) & B BRI ©

SEMBHE

AEBBENEMBRFEENXEENEERA
EMEHNAREE196H ©



Directors’ Report

EEHRE

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors for the Year and up to the date of this report is set
out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leong Kam Leng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Kit
Mr. Law Lap Tak
Ms. Lee Sze Ming

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further,
pursuant to Article 83 of the Articles of Association, any person
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment, and shall be eligible for
re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Mr. Law Lap Tak shall
retire from office at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from date of
the Listing, 11 September 2020. Either party has the right to terminate
the service agreement by giving not less than one month’s written
notice to the other party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Ming Kit, Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee Sze Ming, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 September 2020. Either party has the right to
terminate the letter of appointment by giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of,
the Company or in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS ’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement and
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
or an entity connected with such Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at 31 December 2022 or at any
time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Group, or any
of its subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s controlling shareholders
or any of their subsidiaries during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are not subject to the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT EERRPREBERDARE
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND mRRE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the R 2022F 128318 €S R AN HST
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying A ERARA TS EABEEZB(EERE
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation B AFIES7T1EZEZT 5L BAEEN ([FHRE
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, & {&fl]) £ XV L) A% - HBEAIRD KB
Cap. 571 (Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the FEr - B RIGEE S RS IEHIEXVEIET
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part [ 8 %) 278 &1 & 7K A &) M Bk 35 BT B9 4 25 300K
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are B (BERERIEZ S LS EMNZEGE
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which X E{Esk iR BHEENERIOAR) » SiEE
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the &% [ HI & (&7l 58 352 578 & 50 P 5% (& Py it
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the B fiMiEzRSAR - IRIBEESTRIRTE

Model Code, are set out below: HERSOABEINNT ¢
Interest in Shares of the Company AR R RD P RER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest shares Nete 1) interest (Nete 2
BHRER
EER EStE R 8E w2 BB Dt #E2)
Mr. Cheong (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
SR (BYaE3) R EE R
Mr. Leong (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
R (it 4) RGBS
Notes: Kizt -

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the Company. (1) [LIREEBEATHREMDFTIENTFE o

2 Based on 500,000,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December  (2) H R2022F12A31H A QA Al 2 & 17TH

2022. 500,000,000 A% A% ©
3  Macau E&M Group Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Cheong. By virtue of the  (3) BT EEEARAFIRELELEHES - 1R
SFO, Mr. Cheong is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company EESRHEED  REEWHEERZ IS
held by Macau E&M Group Limited. Mr. Cheong, an executive Director, is also EBERATEAENAAT RO HEAREZS -
the sole director of Macau E&M Group Limited. HITEBREENAS TREERERE AT
W—ESFo
(4)  Macau E&M Assets Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Leong. By virtue of the  (4) BT EEEARAFRREELEHS 1R
SFO, Mr. Leong is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held BES MGG - REERBRERBFIEE
by Macau E&M Assets Limited. Mr. Leong, an executive Director, is also the BEEEATEAENAATIRMOD P HEAREZS -
sole director of Macau E&M Assets Limited. HITEFREENAFIREELEBRATN
W—ESFo
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors or chief executive of
the Company were aware of, persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as
follows:

Name of substantial shareholder Nature of interest

FERRHER

EEME

Beneficial owner

BEREAA

Macau E&M Group Limited
BIKESEE

Ms. Lo Chao leng (Note 3)
BYORE 2+ (M15£3)

Interest of spouse
EiEER

Macau E&M Assets Limited
BTHEEE

Beneficial owner

EREAA

Ms. Leong Kam In (Note 4)
ReFut (Mit4)

Interest of spouse

BB

Mr. Tam Chi Wai (“Mr. Tam”) (Note 5)

ESEAE(EEE] (HE5) ZEGEEER

Beneficial owner

BEREBA

One Wesco Inc.

Ms. Law Ming Chu (Note 6)
BEAZRLZ T (MaE6)

Interest of spouse

BB

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Interest of controlled corporation

B EXFT#EEEI  R202294 12 A31H -
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TR EE (xR EHF KBS KRHIEXV
) RIS ~ ABRERR D R EEE A REE
FRAIEGROIEXVEE 7 R8HIAME A
NRAIRBRTHERIAR (BEREES
MERE GBI B BRI S B 1EiR A
BMESE AR BB RRIRIEES K
BIEME3525FEMELMaviEssAR -
AR IEIZZE ST BB AN E AR A) M 32 AT R4

R AN N
BIORE °

FTERRRRADREERD
RS RRE

P2022F12 A31H AR ESHES
TTBABFRE  THALX(ARRESSH&E
BITHRA BN AR R s A8 B8 IR 19
([BAD ) B RIEE 5 M E 5558 XV 3
F2 N EI D AR AR B P EE RS 0K
B REES R EGG% 336 (KB H A
NEFENE LM CsNERSIAR

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
shares (Nete 1) interest Wete 2
5 IR £

BOBE¥E0  BHES e
198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of substantial shareholder Nature of interest shares (Nete 1) interest (Nete 2
BHRER
TERRHEE EanftE R 8 E w2 BA B Dt #E2)
Mr. Tsang Yuen Wai, Samuel Interest of controlled corporation 47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
(“Mr. Tsang”) (Note 7)
@IRE 4 - Samuel ([E %4 ) SEHEEER
(Btat7)
Bridge Capital Limited Beneficial owner 47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
BEREBA
Ms. Li Sau Fun (Note 8) Interest of spouse 47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
FEZ T (K17E8) EiEER
Notes: BfeE -

(1)

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

() Based on 500,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.

3) Ms. Lo Chao leng is the spouse of Mr. Cheong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lo
Chao leng is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Cheong is
interested.

4) Ms. Leong Kam In is the spouse of Mr. Leong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Leong
Kam In is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Leong is
interested.

(5) One Wesco Inc. is wholly-owned by Mr. Tam. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tam is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by One Wesco Inc..

(6) Ms. Law Ming Chu is the spouse of Mr. Tam. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law
Ming Chu is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tam is
interested.

7) Bridge Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Tsang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Tsang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Bridge Capital Limited.

8) Ms. Li Sau Fun is the spouse of Mr. Tsang. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Li Sau

Fun is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tsang is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any interests
or short positions owned by any persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2022.

(1) FEILIEZBALRERDFNETE -
@  E®20224 12 A31H 500,000,000 & 3 17
ety o

@  BELLARALOEE  RISESEME
0] - BB LR (TR S S
o S s

@) REJXZLI/REENER - REEZFRPE
G0 REFZTHARER R A BB RN
Bein A -

(5)  One Wesco Inc. HEBSLEREHA - IRIEFSH
N EAEARDI - 78 55 A 448 {EH One Wesco Inc.
BAMRMD PR

(6) BERAKZTABLENESE REZHFRHE
&0 BRAKRZTHERIERBLEEBEBEZN
RAD P A RS ©

(7)  Bridge Capital Limited B G E 42 & HH 1R
BESHRBEGD - 85k 4 w18 57 Bridge
Capital Limited %58 #9 iR {5 R #E B #E 4 o

®) EFABLLABEEMES  BEBSLBHE
0 - 25552 T IR B S B R
{5 e B M3

M EXATH AN R2022F12 A31H -
BRIV TFANBTMAL(RRREZEES S
TTHABBRIN) AR RIS S AR (D
HEREBEEHFMAEKRIEXVIE2RES
DEPAMAN AR EEN RS IOAR - HIRIE
B RHE LG FE 336 EBRRATFEN
ERMATR SR SR A ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 August 2020, the Company adopted the Share Option Scheme
which became effective upon the Listing and is subject to the
requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. As of the date of
this report, no option has been granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Share Option Scheme

(1

(2

(3)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to motivate the eligible
participants to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group and attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-
going business relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group.

Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, any directors (including non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other
persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for such number of new shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (6) below.

The maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue on the Listing
Date, i.e. 50,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this report.
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(4)

(5)

The maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to approval by the Shareholders in accordance with
the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Acceptance and exercise of options and duration of
the Share Option Scheme

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by
the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of the Listing. Subject to earlier
termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the Listing Date.

As at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately 7 years and 4 months.

(4)

(5)
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(6)

7

8

Subscription price for shares

Subject to adjustment under the Share Option Scheme, the
subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
but shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities; (ii) the average of the official closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Number of options available for grant

The number of options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 were
50,000,000 and 50,000,000, respectively.

Performance target

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets as
the Board may then specify in the grant before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus under the section headed
“Statutory and general information — D. Other information — 1.
Share Option Scheme”.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Macau E&M Group Limited, Macau E&M Assets Limited, Mr. Cheong
and Mr. Leong (together, the “Covenantors”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition on 21 August 2020 in favour of the Company
(for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries from time to time),
under which each of the Covenantors has jointly and severally
undertaken to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that
none of their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group) shall, during the period that (a) the shares of the Company
remain listed on the Stock Exchange; and (b) either the Covenantors
and their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group), individually or jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the
exercise of, not less than 30% of the voting power at general meetings
of the Company and not less than 10% of the voting power from the
substantial shareholders of the Company; or (c) any of the Covenantors
or their respective close associates remains as a director of any
member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either on their own account,
in conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be interested,
engaged or otherwise involved in or acquire or hold (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether for
profit, reward or otherwise) any business that directly or indirectly be
involved in or any business that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking and any other new
business which the Group may undertake from time to time after the
Listing.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company the compliance with
the non-competition undertakings during the Year. The independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and the
confirmation provided by each of the Covenantors as part of the annual
review process. On the basis that: (i) the Company has received the
confirmations from all of them regarding the undertakings; (ii) there was
no competing business reported by them; and (iii) there was no
particular situation rendering the full compliance of the undertakings
being questionable, the independent non-executive Directors are of the
view that the undertakings have been complied with and been enforced
by the Company in accordance with the terms.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective close associates is or was
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s business) that
competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during the Year and up
to the date of this report.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligation under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this report, the Company is not
aware of any change in any of the information of the Directors required
to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2)
since the last published interim report and up to the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No other equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2022 are set
out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a bank mortgage borrowing of

MOP13.3 million in related to the office premises acquisition on 1 July
2022.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 35.2% and 82.5% of the Group’s total revenue
respectively.

During the Year, the largest subcontractor and the five largest
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 28.4% and
65.7% of the total cost of sales of the Group respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 15.7% and 53.7% of the total cost
of sales of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

The Group insists on the principle of fairness and voluntariness in
recruitment, and does not impose any restrictive requirements on
gender, ethnicity, nationality and region. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had 61 employees in total.

The indicators on employees of the Group, including senior
management, as of 31 December 2022, are set out below:

Indicator

i

Male employees BHET
Female employees ZHEET
Employees aged under 30 30mATET
Employees aged from 30 to 50 30E505E T
Employees aged over 50 505 A FET

TEEF -7 EERHEER

RAFEE  AEEZFAEFPRAAEFEMNA
Wt B Dy RME AR B @Y 49 35.2% M
82.5% °

RAEE  REENFADBARERDE
B0 RGN R E 8 SH B KR £)28.4% K
65.7% °

RAFE  AEBNZARAKNEERD R
AR EEBIEEK AL 15.7% K 53.7% °
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HE2022F12H31H AEBE T (B
SRERE)EZOT

As of 31 December 2022
BZE2022F%12A31H

Percentage

of total

Number of number of
persons employees
HETHE

A ALt

50 82%

11 18%

7 11%

36 59%

18 30%
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The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace. However,
taking into account the nature of the E&M industry where E&M roles are
generally taken up by male, such industry nature may make achieving
gender diversity across the workforce more challenging for the Group.
The Group is committed to maintain at least the current proportion of
female employees. We are committed to fostering a positive working
culture and striving to build an inclusive, equitable and diverse
workplace. The workforce is evaluated by performance on its
professional contribution, without regard to their differences or
similarities. To achieve diversity at workforce level (including senior
management), the Group has put in place appropriate recruitment and
selection practices such that a diverse range of candidates are
considered. The Group has also established talent management and
training programs to provide career development guidance and
promotion opportunities to develop a broad and diverse pool of skilled
and experienced employees.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group enters into employment contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong Kong and Macau.
The remuneration package that is offered to employees generally
includes salary, allowance, benefit-in-kind, and fringe benefits including
medical insurance and contributions to pension funds and bonus. The
Group also operates the Share Option Scheme to incentivise its
employees, details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 86 to 88 of this report. In general, the Group
determines salaries of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority. The Group has, from time to time,
provided training to its employees on various aspects including but not
limited to project management, occupational health and safety,
environmental protection, and accounting and finance. The Group
believes that the quality and safety of its staff play a crucial role in its
operations. It emphasises the importance of health and safety with its
employees and staff members, and provides on-site training to its
workers. All its workers are required to obtain certified training on
occupational health and safety before entering the construction sites.
As the Group is a main contractor for some projects, it applies for work
permits for its non- Macau resident workers on a project-by-project
basis.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 61 (31 December 2021: 59)
employees in Macau, comprising 42 Macau residents and 19 non-
Macau residents (31 December 2021: 40 Macau residents and 19 non-
Macau residents). During the Year, the Group recorded staff costs of
MOP23.5 million (previous year: MOP25.0 million).

During the Year, the total contributions paid or payable by the Group to
the defined contribution retirement benefits schemes were charged to
the profit or loss, at rates specified in the rules of scheme. At 31
December 2022 and 2021, there were no forfeited contributions which
arose upon employees leaving the schemes.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for Year are set out in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments or has agreed to
waive his/her emoluments for the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date
of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 21 August 2020 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to,
(a) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity of
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half- year report
and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Lap Tak (as chairman), Mr. Chan
Ming Kit and Ms. Lee Sze Ming. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.
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AUDITORS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 11
September 2020 and there has been no change in auditor since then.
The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company for the subsequent year
is to be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

Macau E&M Holding Limited
Cheong Ka Wo

Chairman

Macau, 24 March 2023

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

B

AABRHER2020F9 11 BEB LT £
W BB EES - NRFENEE M
BHMEREAEY BEMRSSTMITER
HEPBERBREBAFASERKER - —1H
ENZEEY BERASMITMAT —
FEARQRZBEMAAZRZBERARIBEFTK

gLiRZE -

AEERD
BIIKEZRAERAT
*E

REM

JBFT - 202343 424 H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MACAU E&M HOLDING LIMITED
BUOIKREEZERER AR
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macau E&M
Holding Limited and its subsidiaries set out on pages 102 to 195, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

BARETEE

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

BRIESHIKE

We identified the revenue recognition of electrical and
mechanical engineering works as a key audit matter due
to significant management judgements and estimation
are required in the determination of the total outcome of
the contracting service contracts as well as the progress
towards complete satisfaction of contracting service.
HREREREETABRGE A ONBERIABRRE 2
T LEREREREAHE A BB P EREET
RUEBR RERETEE -

The Group provides services for electrical and
mechanical engineering works. The Group has
recognised revenue from electrical and mechanical
engineering works of MOP139,573,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 as disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
EEERHEBEIRERE - BESECHERBEE20224F
12 A31 B IEFEMHKE TR 7%139,573,000)2F T
RN A SRR FES -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEAEEH T RNAENN

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for
construction contracts included:

AR TR OEEEANNITERREF R

° Obtaining an understanding of the relevant key
controls over recognition of revenue from
construction contracts;

o THRUTER TS 4 Ut f)E R BE B GBI I

° Assessing the Group’s revenue recognition practices
to determine if they are in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BRRETEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEEET T ROMEHN

BAREEE

As set out in notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial On a sample basis,
statements, the Group recognises contract revenue of AR &ELE -

electrical and mechanical engineering works according
to the management’s judgements and estimation of the
total outcome of the contracting service contracts as
well as the progress towards complete satisfaction of
contracting service which is measured based on the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.
BRI MRMT4REME X EEEREEREY
ABRBE NN EERKABRE 2 T TERRIELEF
MR A RRAREIRGONE  HhxTEER &%
ERmEROBEEMNTEHNS NRARTERHBEOTE
IR ALLBGETE -

Agreeing projects contract sum to signed contracts
and variation orders;
HERITNGAORBEESHBEREANESRE

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimates used
by the management in arriving at the total budget
cost, agreed the estimates to supporting documents
and performing review of completed projects;
AAEREERERARENARAAGEEEARE
W TE 8 S 3 XM KR BB Se Rk TR B TR A A E

Comparing the actual cost incurred during the year to
the supporting documents of subcontractors,
suppliers and direct labour to ensure the validity and
accuracy of the costs;

BFEANERKAED DR  HEFIREES THZER
ST R - DAREIRBA AN YA U R 1

Visiting the construction sites and interviewing the
project managers, or tracing to final accounts of the
construction projects to understand the completion
status of the relevant construction project; and
REZEWR WEIBRLEEAK  SUEHREEIER
MEERBE AT HEERERBERENTIER &

Evaluating the reasonableness of progress towards

complete satisfaction of construction contracts to test

the accuracy of revenue recognition for the year.

AETIRESONEERRSIE AR FRlE
RHLERENE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B E RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Man Ka-Lai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SGeREakEMEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TRFITT

Revenue W= 5 143,046 184,496
Cost of services BRFE A AN (117,968) (141,057)
Gross profit ESA 25,078 43,439
Other income Hap g A 6 1,769 1,310
Reversal of (impairment losses) under FEEEEBEEX T 2 #E

expected credit loss model, net (REEE) T8 8 126 (42)
Administrative expenses THAX (16,077) (15,556)
Finance costs BbE R AN 7 (372) (47)
Profit before tax [ F5 A v ) 10,524 29,104
Income tax expense FriSEiF sz 11 (1,212) (2,866)
Profit and total comprehensive FEBMNREEBPALE

income for the year 9 9,312 26,238
Basic earnings per share (MOP cents) FAREARZ A CRPIL) 13 1.86 5.25
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
aE BRI

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
202212 431 H

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHEFI T FEFTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 14 36,451 301
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 815 1,793
Deposits and receivables e K EWFIE 17 960 13,788
38,226 15,882
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 16 41,907 45,342
Trade and other receivables B 5 Nk EMmEWRFIE 17 59,947 37,674
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITFR 18 1,615 1,874
Short-term bank deposits RHIRI T 18 98,450 124,535
Bank balances SRITHE R 18 19,727 49,635
221,646 259,060
Current liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities EHAE 19 - 402
Trade payables and accruals B OENTERETER 20 29,931 33,591
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 603 658
Bank borrowing RITIE X 22 511 -
Tax liabilities HRIEAaE 1,012 3,188
32,057 37,839
Net current assets REEEZFE 189,589 221,221
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Bank borrowing RITE 22 12,812 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 227 693
13,039 693
Net assets EEFE 214,776 236,410
Capital and reserves BARNEHE
Share capital %N 23 5,150 5,150
Reserves HiE 209,626 231,260
Total equity A 214,776 236,410
The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 195 were 5102 =195 B MR A M I5 TR K E 7 2023 F

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24

March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

SRAABREEESHAENKETE  XHT
JNESEHEREE

CHEONG Ka Wo LEONG Kam Leng

REA RERK
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
£ EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

Share Share Legal Other Retained
capital premium reserves reserves earnings Total
kA& BOEE LERE Rl RERA At
MOP’000  MOP000  MOP’000  MOP000  MOP’000  MOP’000
TR®Fix  TRFix TEFt TEFt TEFT TEFT
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Bit1)  (Wit2)
At 1 January 2021 2021 F1 A1 R 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 129,014 210,172
Profit and total comprehensive & AL HF| &
income recognised for the year 2T U544 %8 - - - - 26,238 26,238
At 31 December 2021 R2021 12 A31 A 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 155,252 236,410
Profit and total comprehensive £ AR R % F1|
income recognised for the year 2T INF A% - - - - 9,312 9,312
Dividend paid (note 12) ERRE (H7E12) - - - - (30,946)  (30,946)
At 31 December 2022 2022512 A31 A 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 133,618 214,776
Note 1:  In accordance with provision of the Macau Commercial Code, the subsidiary — ff2371 : iR RPIpg 25516 NBRPIERIFTHE
incorporated in Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) is required ([P DM BARESEER
to transfer a minimum of 25% of the profit after taxation each year to the MR Fn s osnEHE E£FaEE 5
legal reserve until the balance meets 50% of its registered capital. The EE S ETESMEARN50% 5 IE o
reserve is not distributable to shareholders. BT DR PR -
Note 2:  Other reserves represent the difference between the carrying amount  ffz20 . EHiEEERBIER2017F12 848 5%

MOP60,000 of total equity of Kento Engineering satisfied by the way of
issue of shares by the Company for acquisition of Kento Engineering by
Macau E&M Company Limited, pursuant to the reorganisation which was
completed on 4 December 2017 in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

> A A — |
HERERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2022
2022 &

MOP’000
THRFIT

2021
2021 £
MOP’000
FHEFIT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Profit before tax B A5t B g A 10,524 29,104
Adjustments for: FATIHB EH %
Finance costs BhE R AN 372 47
Depreciation of ITIHEBE/ITE
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - B MEE 183 286
— Right-of-use assets —(ERAREE 1,514 769
(Reversal of) impairment losses under TEEIEEBEEN T 2 (#m)
expected credit loss model, net WIEEE  F8E (126) 42
Bank interest income RITHLEUA (1,755) (1,299)
Operating cash flows before movements in LEEAEHANLCERSRE
working capital 10,712 28,949
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B 5 R HAbFEUGRIE (3Eh0) ik
receivables (9,173) 2,946
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD 3,515 6,059
(Decrease) increase in trade payables and B RNFOBEREER R EN
accruals (3,660) 1,034
Decrease in contract liabilities GHBERD (402) (10,778)
Net cash generated from operations KEFTISIR S F 5 992 28,210
Income tax paid BATATSHE (3,388) (5,282)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING &% 58 (FiH) BB & FE
ACTIVITIES (2,396) 22,928
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received EHAE 1,334 875
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WBEME  WEMRE (36,333) (135)
Redemption of short-term bank deposits FE B0 BRI TR K 124,535 62,651
Placement of short-term bank deposits TFARHRITER (98,450) (124,535)
Redemption of pledged bank deposits fEE 2R RITIER 1,874 -
Placement of pledged bank borrowing HFADEMIRITER (1,615) (1,874)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETEFMARESFE
ACTIVITIES (8,655) (63,018)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\%iﬁlﬁ‘;ﬁ%%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2022
2022 &£

MOP’000
THRFIT

2021
2021 4F
MOP’000
FEFIT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAR (1,057) (1,060)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHEESEFE (48) 47)
Dividend paid to shareholder BRI E (30,946) -
New bank loan raised EEFIRITER 13,546 -
Repayment of bank borrowing BERITER (223) -
Interest paid for bank borrowing EATIRITIERFE (129) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEEBFTAEESFEE

ACTIVITIES (18,857) (1,107)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH BeRRESENRL FE

EQUIVALENTS (29,908) (41,197)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHNRESRBESEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 49,635 90,832
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESEEY

AT END OF THE YEAR
Represented by bank balances LASRITAE R 251 19,727 49,635
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REH

Macau E&M Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and registered in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 24 October 2017. Its registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is located at Estrada Marginal do Hipédromo,
No. 56-68, Edifilio Industrial Lee Cheung, 13 Andar D, Macau.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries (together with the Company referred
to as the “Group”) are engaged in the provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering works; and maintenance and repair
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Macanese
Pataca (“MOP”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

BOTHBIERAERAA(ERARD R
201710 H24 B IR IEREHE R RE
F22E (1961 FEIFEN - KERE R
B RHASHETMR L AERE R
RTHRHASEEELABRAR - £it
fif 9 = B2 (i1 72 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands - E X &%
¥ BN R P 5818 5 7% 56-68 5
FETH#KREISEDE -

ARARB—HKREERAT - HBAF
(BRARRGHEFAEEM)NETER
BRICEIRMBETIZER  UKRER
Ko HEAE R A -

REMBRERARIIT((RAMT]) 2
5l BARRAIMEEEHMER -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January
2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 12

Insurance Contract’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
these new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

1% 3R
wE

St
2 3
HEE
RS
wg
RTf
-
L—smn
S—

£ 78 518 14 % 2 N (97 2T
PR B 75 R 5 28 B RASRT AR
REEWERFEATSIEHEME B R
A RUHY R AT B R B 7 e 2E B B ET
7N

BRMBEREENETR Rl

(BHE20205 10 A %
202112 AEREI 75
WEEAETH
(B3TA))

Hwﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁ\lfﬁmﬁﬁ REZEABLNAR
LEREERE8%  AEMEZREN
(1B3TA) BEREHIA

Gl S e ERBEE REARE®
ERLLACHES!

Bl et R 15 BESHARDEES
({E3TA) ERBARE®
BREFERE 15 MEZZNIERS
(1B3TA) B

AReiHEE1%E SHEROBE
EUBR B AR 28
v L EVEACHES!

SIHERIES T (BATR) SRRt 2R
BREEERIE 125 BE-RHELY
(1B3TA) BEREREERD

BRI

1 MR2023F1 A1 B2 BB FE
FEﬁf‘E’)\@( °
2 T B HAsk 2 B BRA A FE BIR AR -

3 R2024F1 A1 B2 BB FEH
FEﬁEE/)\T&"

TSRO 2T B T 0 A R
AN ARTERES - RAAR
R NIRRT TR T s
A RIS AT RS A B RRE
REAFE -

BOIHERRERAE 2022 FERE

109



110

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (“the 2022 Amendments”)

The 2022 Amendments modify the requirements introduced by
the amendments to IAS 1 issued in 2020, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current (“the 2020 Amendments”)
on how an entity classifies debt and other financial liabilities with
covenants as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that only covenants with which the entity is required to comply
with on or before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply
with only after the reporting period do not affect whether that right
exists at the end of the reporting period.

The amendments also specify the disclosure requirements about
information that enables users of financial statements to
understand the risk that the liabilities could become repayable
within twelve months after the reporting period, if the entity
classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-current
when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those liabilities is
subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The amendments also defer the effective date of the 2020
Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024. The amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an
entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the
2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2022, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. fE BB S 3R & % A
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL ((EE B R E &R )
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) BT (&)

(continued)
New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not BB ARERFE
yet effective (continued) PR B 7% ¥R 5 2E B RASET AR ()

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If an
entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy
information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such
items to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be
observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such a case,
an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on the
latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in IAS
8 Definition of Accounting Estimates is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(continued)
New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not © 78 M B 5] R 4 XA $TET B
yet effective (continued) PR B 7% ¥R 5 2E B RASET AR ()

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to EES =R E R ACHE YL
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single BE-RFELECZEEREEERN
Transaction EERE

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15
and 24 of IAS 12 Income Taxes (“IAS 12”) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

ZEEBTREERR ST ERIFE 1257
P ((EREERE 1258 ) F 151
UBBELERBABEREEHRBAEEN
R RHE - EETHERANEDR
R E S RFHERT A A ENE
HEBENRS

As disclosed in note 3.2, for leasing transactions in which the tax BN FES.2 T EE - BB R RSB
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group REEEENHERIME - AEEY
applies IAS 12 requirement to the relevant assets and liabilities as HEAEE KA EREERBR e 48|

a whole. Temporary differences relating to relevant assets and
liabilities are assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognises a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary different can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for
all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with
the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for the Group’s annual reporting
periods beginning on 1 January 2023. As at 31 December 2022,
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
which are subject to the amendments amounted to MOP815,000
and MOP830,000, respectively. The Group is still in the process of
assessing the full impact of the application of the amendments.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Group have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements are determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
lease transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
IFRS16 Leases (“IFRS 16”), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”). In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict
the Group’s performance in transferring control of goods or
services.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using the most likely amount, which better predicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of IFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of car parks and apartments that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:
° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees; and

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less
any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use assets.

When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. In determining the
present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations and
the related current service cost and, where applicable, past
service cost, the Group attributes benefit to periods of
service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an
employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially
higher level of benefit than earlier years, the Group attributes
the benefit on a straight-line basis from:

(@) the date when service by the employee first leads to
benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service) until

(b)  the date when further service by the employee will lead
to no material amount of further benefits under the
plan, other than from further salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
position with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generated unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating units
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
deposits, interest receivables, trade receivables, pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank balances)
and contract assets which are subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(o) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

() the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(iv)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and contract
assets are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables and bank
borrowing) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3.2, the management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. BT EEERZNETE

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Construction contracts in respect of electrical
and mechanical engineering works

The Group reviews and revises the estimated total costs to
complete the satisfaction of electrical and mechanical engineering
works and the margin of each project as the contract progresses.
Budgeted costs and margins are prepared by the management of
the Group on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management of the Group. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management of the Group
conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
Such significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.

Recognised amounts of revenue from electrical and mechanical
engineering contracts and related receivables reflect the
management’s best estimate of each contract’s outcome and
progress towards complete satisfaction, which are determined on
the basis of a number of estimates. This includes the assessment
of the profitability of on-going electrical and mechanical
engineering contracts. For more complex contracts in particular,
costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to
significant estimation uncertainty, the actual outcomes in terms of
total cost may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
each reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years and adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date. The amount of revenue from construction
contracts in respect of electrical and mechanical engineering
works during the year ended 31 December 2022 is
MOP139,573,000 (2021: MOP180,071,000).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

Except for certain trade receivables and contract assets with
individual significant balances, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and contract assets
are grouped based on internal credit ratings as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The internal credit
ratings are based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the contract assets, trade receivables and ECL
are disclosed in notes 16, 17 and 28b respectively.

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of trade receivables
(net of allowance for credit losses) of the Group were
MOP40,780,000 (2021: MOP33,694,000) (note 17). At 31
December 2022, the carrying amounts of contract assets (net of
allowance for credit losses) of the Group were MOP41,907,000
(2021: MOP45,342,000) (note 16).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the amount received and
receivable for revenue arising on electrical and mechanical
engineering works, and maintenance and repair services.

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the executive directors of the Company, who are
also the directors of Kento Engineering, the sole operating
subsidiary of the Group, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), review the overall results and financial position of the
Group as a whole prepared based on same accounting policies
set out in note 3.2.

Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment
and no further discrete financial information nor analysis of this
single segment is presented. No analysis of the Group’s assets
and liabilities is disclosed as such information is not regularly
provided to the CODM for review.

() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

()

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Construction contracts

The Group provides electrical and mechanical engineering
works to customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced.

Progress towards complete satisfaction is measured based
on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation (i.e. contract costs incurred for work
performed to date) relative to the total expected inputs to
the satisfaction of that performance obligation (i.e. total
estimated contract cost), that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

For construction contracts that contain variable
consideration such as variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payment, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount. The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the construction contract only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result in a
significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same
contract, is recognised over the period in which the
construction contracts are performed representing the
Group’s right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges from
one to two years from the date of the practical completion of
the construction. The relevant amount of contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability
period expires. The defect liability period serves as an
assurance that the construction services performed comply
with agreed upon specifications and such assurance cannot
be purchased separately.

When the Group receives upfront payments or cash
advances before construction activities commence, contract
liabilities will arise at the start of the relevant contracts, until
the revenue recognised on such relevant contracts exceeds
the amount of the cash advances.

Provision of services

The Group’s maintenance and repair services involve the
provision of services on the low voltage systems, heating,
ventilation and air-conditioning systems and/or extra low
voltage systems to customers.

The Group provides such services as a fixed-price contract,
with contract terms generally ranging from one year to three
years. Revenue from fixed price contracts for delivering such
services is recognised over time, when the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits from the
Group’s performance. Such services are recognised using a
straight-line basis over the term of the contract.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. WKk oEHER @

INFORMATION (continued)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) "HMEEPENFERE
performance obligation for contracts with NEENRZER
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining SEERIRE LB CREKH
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) DARERE) HIR 5 EERERI
and the expected timing of recognising revenue are as WA TEERE RN T ¢
follows:

At 31 December 2022 R2022F12HA31H

Electrical

and
mechanical Maintenance
engineering and repair

works services
RER

EIR HEIERRIE
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHFIT TP T

Within one year —FR 133,266 7,360

More than one year but not —F L BT EAMRME
more than two years 24,652 145
More than two years A _E - 60
157,918 7,565
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. WKk oEHER @

INFORMATION (continued)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) "HMEEPEHNFERE
performance obligation for contracts with NEENRZEKXE)
customers (continued)

At 31 December 2021 72021412 A31H

Electrical

and
mechanical Maintenance
engineering and repair

works services
RER

WE THE HE RS
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFIT FEFIT

Within one year —F R 153,830 3,028
More than one year but not —F LA BT BAME
more than two years 52,374 1,209
More than two years A B 17,640 332
223,844 4,569
(iv) Geographical information (iv) HhEER
The Group’s revenue is all derived from operations in Macau REBERRE R B RRFR
and the Group’s non-current assets are all located in Macau. BRAEENIERDEEDURN
BPT o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wk oHER »
INFORMATION (continued)
(v) Information about major customers v) FEEFEHR
Revenue from customers in respect of electrical and FA - EREEAWZEE10% 8
mechanical engineering works and maintenance and repair WETRERREREERBEP
services of the year contributing over 10% of the total BT

revenue of the Group are as follows:

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F

MOP’000 MOP’000
FHRFIT THFIT

Customer A ZEA 50,320 31,090
Customer B ZFB 24,950 N/A T3 A
Customer C1 =P C1 N/ATE A * 62,376
Customer C2 BFC2 N/A 38 A * 29,928
Customer D ZFD N/A 738 A * 19,706
* Revenue from the relevant customer was less than 10% of the * REBFE  HEEPHE D
Group’s total revenue for the respective year. RAEBEBKZEN10% ©
Note: Customer C1 and C2 are entities belonging to the same group. et - EFCIRC2EBRRA—%EXN
TR
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAzgA

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TRFIT

Bank interest income RITH B ULA 1,755 1,299
Others Hi 14 11
1,769 1,310
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BEKA

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TRFIT

Interest on: PTEEZHEA :
— imputed interest income on interest- — BRERERE SHEER S HBA
free from accounts receivables 195 -
— bank borrowing — RITIEK 129 -
— lease liabilities —HEAE 48 47
372 a7
8. REVERSAL OF (IMPAIRMENT LOSSES) 8. HIEE/BERA T 2
UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS BE ORERE)  F5

MODEL, NET

20214

MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TRFITT

Impairment (reversed) losses recognised on: LA T 2 HEZRE (B @) E5i8 -

— Trade receivables — B 5 RIFIA (46) 72
— Contract assets —AKNEE (80) (30)
(126) 42

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b. BB AN SN 28b ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. FRiEAl

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

MOP’000 MOP’000
FHRFIT TRFIT

Profit for the year has been arrived at after R FEHE (5t A) 771

154

charging (crediting): FIRBER
Directors’ emoluments (note 10(a)) EE=2ME (W 10(@) 4,109 4,010
Other staff costs: H 8 TR :
— Salaries and other allowances — e M EfhERL 19,282 20,919
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIREFIE B
contributions 90 90
23,481 25,019
Less: amounts included in cost of services i : 5T AR AN 5RIE (15,532) (17,291)
Total staff costs BB T A 7,949 7,728
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EREN B & 2,360 2,359
Depreciation of e
— Property, plant and equipment — ME - WEMERE 183 286
— Right-of-use assets —(FRAEEE 1,514 769
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10.EEREEME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors (@ ==

RIBER EHARRBE ARG
PIRENAFEEENRRITH
ABFBET

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A31ALEFE
Retirement

Salaries benefit

and other scheme
Fee allowances contributions Total

HER BHEH
e Hi2hh TRIREK )

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TR 7 TR TR TR

Executive directors (Note a): HITEE(Wita):
Mr. Cheong Ka Wo REMEE(REE])
(“Mr. Cheong”) - 3,060 1 3,061
Mr. Leong Kam Leng ZeRkEE(REE])
(“Mr. Leong”) - 600 1 601
- 3,660 2 3,662
Independent non-executive BUENTES (Hib) :
directors (Note b):
Mr. Law Lap Tak BERAE 149 - - 149
Ms. Lee Sze Ming FRETT 149 - 149
Mr. Chan Ming Kit BReaHL A 149 - 149
447 - 447
447 3,660 4,109
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e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10.EEREEME @
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(@) Directors (continued) (@ EEw@®
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12 A1 HILFE

Retirement

Salaries benefit

and other scheme

Fee allowances  contributions

HEk BIRER]
ik H i 28 st BIEEER T
MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP’000 MOP'000
TRFIT TRFIT TR TRFIT

Executive directors (Note a): HITER (Wita)
Mr. Cheong R - 3,000 1 3,001
Mr. Leong RHE - 600 1 601
- 3,600 2 3,602
Independent non-executive BUENTES (D)
directors (Note b):
Mr. Law Lap Tak RinEisE 136 - - 136
Ms. Lee Sze Ming FRELL 136 - - 136
Mr. Chan Ming Kit BREpf S E 136 - - 136
408 - - 408
408 3,600 2 4,010
Notes: Hiat
(@  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their (@) FHBMTEENMERARERE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the BAR R RALBEEBARER
Company and the Group. Mr. Cheong is also the chief executive HHME o REETTABAEER
of the Group for both years. MIEFE 2 BENITE
()  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown (b) EMBIUERTEZTNOMES AR
above were for their services as directors of the Company for ERMEFEEERRAEZESH
both years. RERBHEME -
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e M BHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
include one (2021: one) executive director. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2021: four) individuals of the Group for
the year are as follows:

10.EEREEMES»

b) EE

AEERAFENDE R H M
ALTBE—%(2021F - —R)#
TTESE - AEEHE % (2021
F - R) EARAFEAB S0

T~
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFT  FHPE
Salaries and other allowances e M E A ERY 2,934 2,850
Discretionary bonus (Note) BIHIEAL (B 7E) 2,845 2,703
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & i& F| 5T 2|t 2 4 4
5,783 5,557

Note: The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the duties
and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group and
the Group’s performance.

The number of highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Biat - BYBTEAL 2 ZEREBMANBHR
ATHBS R E FARAEER
KA METE °

FMNRATEEBLIERRF]
BEXxZESFMEEHBNT

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7 & 1,500,000 78 7T 2 4
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T = 2,000,000 7% 7T 2 -

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to joint or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No director has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

H E 20224 ) 2021F12 A31 H
IFFE AEEHERARRE
ERhEEa AT (RIEES
MEB)INMEEENALEE
B EEEN B I AN £ B 2 1% B9 HE R
HIEABEEMEE - RIEEERM -
T = iz ok R = AR B
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11.Fi 8B

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 &
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFI T FHEPIT
Macau Complementary Tax RFIPSH TR
Current tax BUEARL T 896 3,156
Underprovision (overprovision) in BEFERETT (GBRERE)
prior years 231 (822
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEN
Current tax BNERFR 1B 85 32
1,212 2,866

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
registered in Hong Kong. The Cayman Islands tax is exempted,
but the Company is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and it is
qualified for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2
million of the assessable profits is taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

The Company’s operating subsidiary is subject to Macau

Complementary Tax at a rate of 12% on the assessable income
exceeding MOP600,000 for both years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq) 1. EFHBEZ@®
Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit FRASHESZEGAEREEMSE
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and EER NSRS M E RN T -

other comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TRFIT

Profit before tax B B B ) 10,524 29,104
Tax charge at Macau Complementary 2 12% W) RFIFTIS TR R

Tax rate of 12% FTEMRIBES H 1,263 3,492
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAENMMIBERASZ cMIBTE

for tax purposes 99 80
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARBRA Z HIEZE

purpose (328) (298)
Special complementary tax incentive 5 Rl B e 1 e (72) (72)
Underprovision (overprovision) in prior years @1 F & B T & (FBREEHE) 231 (322)
Effect of different tax rate of entity EEMBAEERELENEER

operating in other jurisdiction TEBERNZE 19 (14)
Income tax expense for the year FRERASY 1,212 2,866
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

12.DIVIDENDS 12. [k B

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TRFIT

Dividends for ordinary shareholders REFZHERED IR AR F]
of the Company recognised as TR RS
distribution during the year:

2021 Final — HK2.03 cents 2021 FRHI — 2.03 %1l

(equivalent to MOP2.09 cents) (FEEE 2 2.0938 F91L)

(2021: 2020 final — Nil) (20214 : 2020 F K — &) 10,470 -
2021 Special — HK3.97 cents 2021 155 — 3.97 84l

(equivalent to MOP4.10 cents) (FAZER4.103RFL)

(2021: 2020 special — Nil) (2021 4F : 2020 455 — &) 20,476 -

30,946 -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend PEREEIRE - #122022F12 431 H
and a special dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December IEFERARERFIRESD B AT
2022 of HK1.08 cents (2021: HK$2.03 cents) and HK$nil (2021: T EA AL 1.0878 1l (2021 £ - 2.0378 1)
HK3.97 cents) respectively per ordinary share, in an aggregate K ZE#E (20214 : 3.978L) - %8
amount of approximately HK$5,400,000 (equivalent to 7 Bl #95,400,0007%% T # F »
MOP5,570,000) (2021: approximately HK$10,150,000) and HK$nil 5,570,000)2 F3 7T ) (20214 : %Y
(2021: HK$19,850,000, in an aggregate amount of 10,150,0007%8 7t ) & & % Jr. (2021 & :
MOP30,946,000) respectively, have been proposed by the #719,850,000% 7T + 42%8 /330,946,000
directors of the Company and are subject to approval by the BPIJT)  ERARRIESIRE C WA
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. FRREEERRBEREG LHE -
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REMBHRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

13.BR&EF

AR A A I AR TY DA
TR

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TRFIT

Earnings BF
Earnings for the purpose of calculating STESRERENNEF]
basic earnings per share (RREEE ANEIEFEART])
(profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company) 9,312 26,238
’000 000
FiR Fhg
Number of shares BoEA
Weighted average number of ordinary SAESRERENN
shares for the purpose of calculating TSR N 19 2k
basic earnings per share 500,000 500,000

No diluted earnings per share is presented for both years as there
was no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

R A E 988 0BT RELEB
R - A 2 5 2 SRR
A o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9¥% - BER&E

Office Leasehold Motor Office
premises improvements vehicles
HENEEE BH

MOP’000 MOP’000

Furniture
equipment
HORE
MOP'000

and fixtures Machinery Total

RARKE B @3t
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

N A
MOP’000

162

T

COST BA&

At 1 January 2021 202151 A18 - 1,429 140 248 47 9 2,243
Additions e - - 129 6 - - 135
At 31 December 2021 2021512 A31H - 1,429 269 254 47 9 2,378
Additions NE 35,748 550 - 14 21 - 36,333
At 31 December2022  #2022F12 A31H 35,748 1,979 269 268 438 9 38,711
DEPRECIATION e

At 1 January 2021 202151818 - 1,136 139 186 323 7 1,791
Provided for the year ~ FE&f& - 187 15 28 54 2 286
At 31 December 2021 12021512 A31 B - 1,323 154 214 377 9 2,077
Provided for the year ~ EE /& - 108 2 21 28 - 183
At 31 December2022 1202212 A31H - 1,431 180 235 405 9 2,260
CARRYING VALUES  EREE

At 31 December 2022 #2022F12 A31 B 35,748 548 89 33 33 - 36,451
At 31 December2021 12021 F12 A31H - 106 115 40 40 - 301

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates

per annum:

Office premises

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Machinery

2%

Over the term of the lease
20%

20%

20%

20%

Note: Office premises and carpark are not in use during the year 2022, the
depreciation is expected to be started in 2023.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

15.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15.FFEEE

Office
premises Warehouse Car parks Printers Total
N rE FE5 FTENH “st
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFITT FREPIT FRBFIT FREFIT FEPIT
COST 2N
At 1 January 2021 MR2021F1H1H 1,867 2,380 68 329 4,644
Additions NE 937 - 142 - 1,079
At 31 December 2021 »20214F12 431 H 2,804 2,380 210 329 5,723
Additions B - 536 - - 536
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12 A31H 2,804 2,916 210 329 6,259
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2021 K2021F1H1H 1,311 1,529 60 261 3,161
Provided for the year FREBE 410 262 53 44 769
At 31 December 2021 7K2021F12A31H 1,721 1,791 113 305 3,930
Provided for the year FEERE 431 990 71 22 1,514
At 31 December 2022 K2022%F12A31H 2,152 2,781 184 327 5,444
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2022 H2022%F12A31H 652 135 26 2 815
At 31 December 2021 Mn2021F12 431 H 1,083 589 97 24 1,793
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e B HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

15. RlGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

15.FFEEE®

164

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 &

MOP’000 MOP’ 000

FHEF T FRFIT

Expense relating to short-term leases B HAHER RS 266 243

Total cash outflow for leases (Note a) HEReR T B8 (Wita) 1,371 1,350

Additions to right-of-use assets (Note b) RNEBEFREEE (Fidb) 536 1,079
Notes: B

@ Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities and short-term leases. These amounts are presented in
operating or financing cash flows.

(b) Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered
and lease modification.

For both years, the Group leases office premises, warehouse, car
parks and printers for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of one year to five years (2021: one year to five
years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car parks
and apartments. At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to
which the short-term lease expense incurred during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into
new lease agreement for the use of one car park. Lease liabilities
of MOP1,079,000 are recognised with related right-of-use assets
attributable to new leases entered into. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes. These are the major
non-cash lease related transactions for the previous year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

16.CONTRACT ASSETS

16. 6 EE

The contract assets arising from electrical and mechanical
engineering works, and maintenance and repair services are as
follows:

WETIRURRERGERBELNE
WEEWT

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
MOP’000 MOP’ 000
F&FI T FEFTT
Contract assets from contracts with BEAHEENEHNEE
customers 41,961 45,476
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 28b) i : 12 B k518 #4E (f1-L28b) (54) (134)
41,907 45,342
Represented by: (A
Electrical and mechanical #E T2
engineering works 41,721 45,158
Maintenance and repair services RERAERT 186 184
41,907 45,342
Analysed as current AT RRNER
Unbilled revenue PN 38,116 28,978
Retention receivables FEWRE & 3,791 16,364
41,907 45,342

At 1 January 2021, contract assets amounted to MOP51,371,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance in
satisfying the respective performance obligations at the reporting
date on construction contracts in respect of electrical and
mechanical engineering works, and maintenance and repair
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the rights become unconditional.

Change of contract assets as at 31 December 2022 represents
the contract revenue recognised ahead of the accumulated
progress billings.

R2021F1A1H & W & E B
51,371,000 8F5 7T -

ARNEETZERNEEM D TRERR
FEM TIRWEKEREFARE - AR
A ERENARN S BN S B HRKETT
HWETIZURRE MGEROHEES
M B HBHIR T RGN - BRFIRE
BEIRITR  ANEEREBEESHRK
A °

R2022F 12 A31 HANEEZSIERE
ZEHEEREERAE OIS -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

16.CONTRACT ASSETS (continueq)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits and typically net
offs the deposits with first payments. Unbilled revenue included in
contract assets represents the Group’s rights to receive
consideration for works completed but not yet billed because the
exercise of such rights is conditional upon customers’ satisfaction
on the contract work completed by the Group, customers’ or
external surveyors’ issuance of certification on the works or the
payment milestones being met. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains
certification of the completed contract works from customers or
external surveyors or meets payment milestones.

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period ranging from
one year to two years for 5% to 10% of the contract value. This
amount is included in contract assets until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on satisfying the defect liability period of individual
contracts. The Group typically reclassifies contract assets to trade
receivables when defect liability period expires.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating
cycle.

At 31 December 2022, retention money held by customers for
contract works amounted to MOP3,791,000 (2021:
MOP16,364,000). Retention money is unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable at the end of the defect liability period of individual
contract, ranging from one year to two years from the date of the
completion of the respective projects.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

1 6.CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Construction contracts (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of retention money which is to
be settled, based on the expiry of defect liability period, at the end
of the reporting period.

16.5NEE =)

BESN @)

RI|ERR - HREEEHFMB S
MFEBRESNREDITAOT

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
FHRFIT TRFIT

Within one year N—F R 2,374 5,706
After one year —F1& 1,417 10,658
3,791 16,364

At 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s retention money
are debtors with a carrying amount of MOP40,000 (2021:
MOP653,000), which are past due but not impaired. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.

M2022612 A31 B » st AKREERHA
& Y FE U 3R I8 BR M B 4 40,0002 P9 7T
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17.E5 R E B WRIE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
THRFIT TRFIT

Trade receivables from contracts with BEAAEENE FRENGIE
customers 40,935 33,895
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 28b) i : 12 B k518 #4E (AL 28b) (155) (201)
40,780 33,694
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments £ EUFRIE « 1% M IB( 7R1E
— Deposits (Note) — &e (M) 13,993 14,037
— Prepayments — FERTFIE 5,248 2,567
— Interest receivables — JEYFIE 420 424
— Other receivables — B EIA 466 740
20,127 17,768
Total trade and other receivables B 5 NHEMEWFIE4R%E 60,907 51,462
Analysed as: DT -
Current E 59,947 37,674
Non-current JERED 960 13,788
60,907 51,462
Note: The deposits primarily represented (i) the performance guarantee money Wit e EBERNAEBRZLERIEAST
placed to the customers as securities of the performance of the Group’s R EIE B IR B ARE S + K (i)
E&M projects; and (ii) rental deposits. HERS -
At 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with 2021 F1 18 BREFAHNELENE
customers amounted to MOP39,310,000. 5 B3R TE & 39,310,000 8T ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
customers. The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at
gross amount based on invoice date at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

17.ES R EMEWRRIE )

REEGETAREPIOARHFHIEE -
REWMERR  BEBEAEFENAE
SEEZRKRIBABOERR ST
T

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
FHAT  TRFT

0-30 days 0E 30K 16,357 24,025
31-60 days 31 £ 60K 8,943 2,854
61-90 days 61 290K 6,754 719
Over 90 days @90 K 8,881 6,297

40,935 33,895

At 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
MOP24,772,000 (2021: MOP9,870,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances MOP100,000
(2021: MOP4,381,000) have been past due over 90 days or more
and are not considered as in default as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still
considered as recoverable based on historical experience.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
customers from the date credit was initially granted up to the end
of each of the reporting period. The majority of the Group’s trade
receivables that are past due but not impaired are from customers
with good credit quality with reference to respective settlement
history and forward-looking information without undue cost and
effort. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.

N2022F12 A31H  sTAREEEZ S
FEWGRIB &SN ERRIEREEES
24,772,00052F9 £ (20214 : 9,870,000
BPIT) RRE RSB aE - BE
4 # "1100,0008 P9 JT(20214 :
4,381,00002F970) B @ HIHE 890 X =k,
AE - BWARWAREELD  RAREE
BEWEREERES  MBEFELL
5 - BERCRNES AT KEIFHIE -

REMEMFHETFA - AEEEFEE
EEPHEEER  UREPAEEE
[RER - NEEE B S EUGRIAMN AT Bl 1
B AEEeEENSRLEEERE
EEBREMREFEELZNEMNE
B R2ELANENEETHNREA
MNHBZRARBONAELEER &
SERZBERMERNENE FHEK
RBEYREABERFEEERNEF -
ARER B R L T s B R

[}
an °

B E BN EE28b

BOIHERRERAE 2022 FERE

169



170

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

18.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES

Pledged bank deposits EERIRITIF R
Short-term bank deposits RHERSRITIE K
Bank balances RITHEER

18. 2K AIRITFER EHR
THERBITHERR

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHEFIT FHEFIT
1,615 1,874
98,450 124,535
19,727 49,635

Pledged bank deposits represent bank deposits which are
pledged to secure bank guarantee to the Group. At 31 December
2022, the pledged bank deposits carried interest at a fixed rates
ranging from 1.6% to 2.5% per annum (2021: ranging from 1.1%
to 1.3% per annum).

At 31 December 2022, the short-term bank deposits carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 2.8% to 4.1% per annum (2021:
ranging from 1.2% to 1.7% per annum) and with original maturity
more than three months.

Bank balances carry at prevailing market interest rate of 0.01%
(2021: 0.01%) per annum.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

HK$ BTT

BRI ERIE DML ERRE TR
EEMIBITERNIRITER - K 2022
F12A31H @ EEFRITTFFIZEE
FEFENT1.6% E2.5% (2021 4F : F
FENF11% E1.3%) 18 °

R20225F12 A31H - ZH5EHRTE
FEERRNT2.8%54.1% (20214 :
FEMENT12%E1.7%) » BHREIH
BB =EA -

RITEBRZBITT SN ERFE001%
(20214 : 0.01%)5tHE

AEENDEMBITER - EHRTHF
RMARTT R TVIZAAR A B E R A Th AL
BEEELASNEEEHE - #INAT

2022
2022 F

2021
2021 4
MOP’ 000
THFIT

MOP’000
FHRFIT

115,800 166,726

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

B RS B BB MR 28b -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

19.CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities arising from electrical and mechanical
engineering works are as follows:

Contract liabilities from contract with

19. 808 E
WEIREEMEHEENT :

2022
2022 F

2021
2021 4
MOP’000
FEFIT

MOP’000
FHRFIT

HERETIRAFTEFPANELEN

customers in relation to electrical and AHAaE

mechanical engineering works - 402
At 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to R2021F1A1H & B B & A
MOP11,180,000. 11,180,000 FF7T °
Contract liabilities are classified as current as they are expected BREHNAEEHRAEE —REER

to be settled with the Group’s normal operating cycle.

Change of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
represents the reduction of accumulated progress billings ahead
of the contract revenue recognised.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

BAGEE BB HEI> AR EE -
R2022F 2021 F12 A31B A4 &
EREIEERRE BT RETEER
BREA -

TREURT RS B
MR ER

BAMWAR

2022
2022 F 2021 4
MOP’000 11Y/[0]=d0]0]0]
FEF T TRFIT
Revenue recognised that was included FUFAENEBEEHH
in the contract liabilities balance at the B R R

beginning of the year

402 11,180

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts

When the Group receives upfront payments or cash advances
before construction activities commence, contract liabilities will
arise at the start of the relevant contracts, until the revenue
recognised on such relevant contracts exceeds the amount of the
cash advances.

FEOEHASHAESENIZNTEG
T

BESY

EAREEREEE B A AT EI TR R
SRS BHRE - BHRERREEEH
FMEFEL - BRAA OERNNKE
HBRERRERL -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

20.TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20.ESENRERESTE
A

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
FHFIT THFIT

Trade payables E S ENIE 9,859 4,062
Accruals fEFTE A
— Accrued construction costs — FEEFEEA AR 12,167 22,618
— Accrued staff bonus — FEETE TIE4T 2,700 4,600
— Accrued legal and professional fees — EEHEEREEER 1,946 1,719
— Other accrued charges — EMERER 3,259 592
29,931 33,591
The credit period on trade payables ranges from 0 to 90 days. The B RN FIENEEHRNT0OEIX -
aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on invoice REREER - AEEREZHHRE D
dates at the end of each reporting period are as follows: HE S ENFIBRERSTAT -

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

MOP’000 MOP’ 000
TRFIT TRFITT

0-90 days 0£90K 9,751 2,566
91-365 days 91 £365K 108 1,496
9,859 4,062
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

21.LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities payable:

21.JHEE66

2022
2022 &

MOP’000
THRFIT

ENHEERE

2021
2021 £
MOP’000
FHEFIT

Within one year —FRN 603 658
Within a period of more than one year —F A BT RBIBRE

but not more than two years 227 466
Within a period of more than two years MFEL BT EBARF

but not more than five years - 227

830 1,351

Less: Amount due for settlement within B Rt ZEARTHEE Y

12 months shown under current liabilities FEGIAREBERE) (603) (658)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R+ (B A& EIHEE 2 708

shown under non-current liabilities FIAFERBEE) 227 693

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease

liabilities is 5% (2021: 5%).

EANEE & ERINEE T S 53K F)
R A55% (2021 F : 5%) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

22.BANK BORROWING

Secured bank borrowing BIEFRIRITIER

22 B 1TER
2022
2022 &

2021
2021 4
MOP’000
FEFIT

MOP’000
THRFIT

13,323 -

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
MOP’000 11Y/(0]2d0]0]0]
FEF T FEFIT
The carrying amounts of the above FiiEFHEEEmEAERE
borrowing are repayable™:
Within one year —F A 511 -
Within a period of more than one year —F LA BT EAMRE
but not exceeding two years 528 -
Within a period of more than two years MEL EERBBRF
but not exceeding five years 1,683 -
Within a period of more than 5 years HFELE 10,601 -
13,323 -

*

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as set out in
the agreement.

At 31 December 2022, the bank borrowing bear interest at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate +1.3% or Prime Rate -3% (2021: nil),
whichever is lower.

Effective interest rates per annum of bank borrowing for the year
are fixed at respective contract dates as follows:

o
$
2
W

Effective interest rates

* NS EERBZET I NEHERA
HA o

R2022F12 A31H @ RITEZIRES
RITRIZEFE +1.3% LB EEFNE-3%
(20214 : )R - URIEE B -

FRRTEFRNERFNEZREAOHE
HEEMT

2022 2021
2022 20214
2.875% Nil
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

23.SHARE CAPITAL 23. R A
Number Share
of shares capital
BREEE [EN
MOP’000
FRFIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FR0.01 BT E AR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and 2022 2021 F1A1H 2021 F K
202212 A31H 2,000,000,000 20,600
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and 2022 R2021F1A1H 2021 F
2022F 12 A31H 500,000,000 5,150

All shares as at year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 rank pari
passu with the then existing shares in issue in all aspects.

ANE E20224% ;2021 FE12 A31 8 IE
FEEBRMHPTBE T ELEER RS
BETRHZERSER -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

24.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Place and
the date of Issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully paid
Name of subsidiaries operation establishment capital

) AV ERITR
] ARt LEMHY B RE R B 5 BERAE

24. T E B D EFFE

AR R EE RS 2 I
ARIREB 25T -

Shareholding/
equity interest
attributable
to the Company Principal activities
EDREERE
[N TEXEK

2022 2021

2022 & 20214

Directly held:

BEfR

Macau E&M Company  HK British Virgin Islands HK$1

Limited 30 October 2017

FLRERRAF 5 KBRS 1587
201710 H30H

Indirectly held:

&R -

Kento Engineering Macau Macau MOP60,000
27 January 2011

BETR g JRPY 60,000 97T

201151 A27H

25.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Employees employed by the Group’s operation in Macau are
members of government-managed social benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Macau operation is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the social benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the social benefits scheme operated by the Macau
government is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

26.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 August 2020
(“Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide employees, executives or officers,
subsidiaries, directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers
and distributors of the Group (“Participants”) with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company with a
flexible means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
Participants. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 11
September 2020 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
shall remain in force for 10 years from that date. As at 31
December 2022, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 7 years and 8 months.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no option has
been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme.

27.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to its stakeholders and maintaining an
adequate capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy remained
unchanged from prior year.

The Group regards capital as the equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group regularly reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risk associated with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new shares issues as well as the issue of new
debts.

2&%&@%%@2@%?

N

KABIE 202048 A21 HERHN—1E
FERRMERT 2 ([ BB AR AEST Bl )) - BERRAERT
EEEURTEENEE  ITTHRABK
BE -MBLAG BEE - EWAHE
- (HER BR kS HE([8HE])
ELBE - BB - #F - I~ Fe 4
FrER/SRHEFNSEENTN
M2 EE R HES AR T AR
e UREB2EE BERQRRF
BHRARRBRERMNHOEE - B
BT 220209 11 B AR - B 3E
STBUHSERT - BAIFTEIE A% B
RET10F A B & - 720224 12 A 31
B BRETINFSTFEHOETFS
f&a -

BIZERETE - THEERARAES
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EROBHAEEEBANFHINT
& R(i)ARARHOEE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28a. Categories of financial instruments

28. M TH
28a. SR T AW S HE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F

MOP’000 MOP’000
FHRFIT TRFIT

Financial assets ERMEE
Amortised cost o 19N 175,606 224,939
Financial liabilities tRmEE
Amortised cost # R 23,182 4,062
Lease liabilities HEaE 830 1,351

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables from contracts with customers, deposits, interest
receivables, other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances, trade payables
and bank borrowing. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group collects most of the revenue and incur most of
the expenditures in their respective functional currencies.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
purchase of raw materials that are denominated in a
currency other than the Group’s functional currency. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily HK$. The
management of the Group considers that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is insignificant
as the majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of each individual group entity and
HKS$ is pegged with MOP.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The carrying amounts of certain significant foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of each reporting period are as follows:

Assets
BE
2022

2022 fF
MOP’000
FEF5 T

HK$ BT 186,313

28. WM T H»

28b.

2021
2021 £
MOP’000
FEFIT

206,702

B 5 A 2 E AR R
R(#E)

15 A
Bk

REE AR R B /TR S B UER
RED s R KRB D X
He AEBEEENEERREE
REAEENGEEEUIINEE
SHE® R R - ELERR
RONEBEIERET AKEHE
BEERR  ARARERIDR
ZUERSEEESENNESR
BETERBTERPITTHE - &
7 5% [ Py TE B 9 S P LB X
* o

7N S [ 3R 5 X R SN SRR
A AEBEEREHIMNERR
BEREETHEERENERT -
&L B E A INER R

REREHRE FERAINEST
ENEBEEREEaGEMNER
(ER NN

Liabilities
=Fi
2022 2022
2022 F 2021 4
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHFI T FEFIT

19,241 3,314
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits, bank balances and
bank borrowing. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank
deposits and fixed bank deposits.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 20 basis point (2021:
nil) increase or decrease in variable-rate bank borrowing is
used represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. Bank balances
are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the management
considers that the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk
arising from variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 20 basis points (2021: nil) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
decrease/increase by MOP756,000 (2021: decrease/
increase by nil). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowing.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
will default on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. At 31 December 2022 and
2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of respective financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

The management of the Group performs impairment
assessment for financial assets and contract assets under
ECL model. Information about the Group’s credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and the
related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

Trade receivables and contract assets arising
from contracts with customers

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has concentration of
credit risk as 58% (2021: 76%) of the total trade receivables
and contract assets are due from the Group’s five largest
customers. The major customers of the Group are certain
reputable organisations and management of the Group
considered that the credit risk is insignificant after
considering their historical settlement and credit quality.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated its finance team to develop and
maintain the Group’s credit risk gradings to categories
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The
finance team uses publicly available financial information
and the Group’s own historical repayment records to rate its
major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure and
the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

28. €@ T B »)
28b. Eﬁ%ﬂl‘ﬁ””fi BHERK

)
EREBRAERE

EERBREASERZIHFTE
THAENETRASEETE R
B3 18 2 B B o 722022 F K 2021
F12A31H AEEFHAEEAH
R SGEFREBITEEMER
$E@%§M%%Emﬁk:ﬁ
CEABREVBRREF
W%%%E@@é%%%@ﬁo
AEBWAFEEMERDKE
iz g EE  NREREES
REEMRBENEERRE

AEEEREERAMEEBRE
ANHEMEERANEEEITR
Efffh - BHEAREEERRE
B RAEERRB O XA
EFHE(ER) BT

EFEHNELNE S BN
HREHNEE

R2022%12 A31H  AEEHK
SR EERBRAAEBRRLARF
MEZEBGRBERAENEERTE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising
from contracts with customers (continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables and
contract assets with individual significant balances or that
are credit-impaired are assessed for impairment individually,
the remaining trade receivables and contract assets are
assessed collectively using a collective basis with
appropriate groupings. In this regard, the management of
the Company considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Deposits, other receivables and interest
receivables

Management of the Group makes periodic collective
assessment on the recoverability of these items based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

The management of the Group believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of deposits and interest receivables.

Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits

and bank balances (continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating

ABEEFR

Very low risk

R ENE

Low risk

i

High risk

Loss

EE

Write-off

sE

Description

i

The counterparty has a very low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts

RHHEFHENEREE - WREMBHFE

Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settle in full
BEBARERINHRERETN  BERELRES

There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or
external resources

BRBAHIINEERFENERET IR
HRE  EERRBEZEEM

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BRSRAEELRESRE

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
AERABRBABABRENTBRE - Al
AEERERIENT YT

28. €@ T B »)

28b. M % Rl B3 B R R K

R#E)

EE R KR ER L (E)

IE& = /n{]ﬁé (g)
$EIWW%FEHM#W%ﬁ
Trade receivables/ Other
contract assets financial assets
B RUE EHNEE HitteRMEE
Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired  12m ECL
PHRBEEES - 12EARREEER
Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired  12m ECL
THRBEEFE - BEE 12EAEHEEER
Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL -

PHBRHEERSE -

Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

2HBRHEERR -
EEEEERE

Amount is written off

FOB A 34

not credit-impaired

2HEMEEHE
— mEERE

=Rz

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
FHEBEERE
- BEAEERE

Amount is written off

FURT M
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. £t T B »)
28b.Financial risk management objectives and 28b. I EMEEBEZERK
policies (continued) K (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FEmREEBETE (&)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRHEMIEAEBRSREER
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are ANBENEERR  ZZ4H
subject to ECL assessment: e DA
) BERANAEAETHEMEE
EEET i -
External Internal
credit rating credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
ShE W
SER EER 128 A2 HABEEEHE HREAE
At 31 December
W12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRM T FHRFIT
Deposits 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 13,993 14,037
e TEA [livENt 12{E AEHEERE
Other receivables 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 466 740
Hihfeesna THEA R 12EARBHEEEE
Interest receivables 17 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 420 424
MR & AA+ TEA 12EAEREERE
Trade receivables from 17 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (collective 21,896 6,901
contracts with customers assessment)
EPEHNEEN TiEfA (Miz2) 2 HEBEEEE (R8T
B 5 EMGE
Low risk Lifetime ECL 12,838 25,159
(individual assessment)
R 2 BEBEEEE (EREHL)
High risk Lifetime ECL 4,366 -
(individual assessment)
SRR 2 HEBEEEE (EREHL)
Loss Credit-impaired 1,835 1,835
BB BEEEERE
40,935 33,895
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

28. WM T H»

28b. I A EERERK
¢ )

EE R KR ER L (E)

(continued)
External Internal
credit rating credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
SR W
REFR EER 128 AR 2 HAMEEEE REAE
At 31 December
®12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRM T FEFIT
Contract assets 16 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL 18,772 18,326
(collective assessment)
aHEE TEfA (Hizt2) 2 HEHEEEE (ETH)
Low risk Lifetime ECL 23,189 27,150
(individual assessment)
izl 2R EEEEE (ERT )
41,961 45,476
Pledged bank deposits 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 1,615 1,874
BERBTER AA+ TER 12{E AEHEEREE
Short-term bank deposits 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 98,450 124,535
RERITER AA+ TERA 12EAEREERE
Bank balances 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 19,727 49,635
|ITHER AA+ TEA 12EAEREERE

BOIHERRERAE 2022 FERE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

28. M T H»)

28b. I A EERERK
R

EE R KR ER L (E)

Azt

1. HAEERRERME A%
[ {50 F 260 1 & B RE (S B )R HE AR
EERRRIECEELM -

Not
past due Total
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHEFTT FHFIT
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12H31H
Deposits b 13,993 13,993
At 31 December 2021 A2021F12A831H
Deposits e 14,037 14,037
2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied 2. HEZERFERENEEM

the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on
these items by using collective basis, grouped by internal credit
rating.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit ratings to assess the impairment for
its customers because these customers consist of a large
number of small customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables and contract assets which
are assessed on a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired). Trade receivables and contract assets with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired with
gross carrying amounts of MOP19,039,000 and
MOP23,189,000 respectively as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
MOP26,994,000 and MOP27,150,000) were assessed
individually. Trade receivable with significant outstanding
balance of MOP4,366,000 (2021: nil) at high risk has an
agreed monthly settlement plan of which all amounts due
have been settled timely during the year and at the end of
the reporting period. Trade receivable which is credit-
impaired assessed individually with outstanding balance of
MOP1,835,000 (2021: MOP1,835,000) has a sum of
MOP1,300,000 (2021: nil) is held on escrow.

28. T H»)
28b. MK AMEEBEERK

E4¢ )
EERBRBETEE)

BB ELAFAR

EAREEEERREEN—IF
S AEEHEFHEBANIEE
AT ERE BAZERF
BREAEAEEHXRRREEHR /)
AXE  HREZPIREA OIF
REATAE D ERIENE D - T
REVNEBEZRBFBERED
BEMEERRBONER T
BRIEXHBEREERE(EEER
B) Rk HEREE LT (G o 1K2022
F12A31H EBEEAKEE
HEHRICDBEEERENEZE
WHIERENEERMBED R
19,039,000 P9 Jt & 23,189,000
B P9 T (2021 4F : 26,994,000 2
F9 7T K 27,150,000% F9 5t ) 18 5
HITHH - AAEXRKEELH
K= RS B 5 FE U EIE 4,366,000
SEPIIT (2021 F - E)EWHESA
HEERTE - EFmARERED
RERARIREPRRRELES - @
A EEEEEERERARR
BEEEHBNE S ERRIE
1,835,000082 P9 Jr(20214F :
1,835,0003% P9 7t ) # 1,300,000
SBPIT(20214F « ) BIEERH -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Internal credit rating (continued)

Gross carrying amount

28. M T H»

28b. A EEBEERK
)

EE R KR ER L (E)

RIEBIS EFFAR (4)
ARETAE(E

2022 2021

2022 % 2021
Internal Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
credit rating loss rate receivables assets loss rate  receivables assets
AEE TR TUEEE EZEUNE ARNEE THUEEX ZZRNFTE aHEE
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRF 7T FRF 7T FEFIT FRFIT
Very low risk TR {E 2 0.05% 19,502 17,100 0.01% 1,043 5,628
Low risk K& 0.18% 2,394 1,672 0.49% 5,688 12,044
High risk BER N/ARER - - 4.76% 170 654
21,896 18,772 6,901 18,326

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
reversed MOP65,000 and MOP123,000 (2021: reversed
MOP124,000 and MOP156,000) impairment allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets under collective basis,
respectively. The Group also provided impairment
allowances of MOP122,000 and MOP43,000 (2021:
MOP72,000 and MOP126,000) for trade receivables and
contract assets due from debtors with significant balances,
and reversed MOP103,000 impairment allowance (2021:
provided MOP124,000) for credit-impaired debtors.
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REE DR E S ERKIER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. ¢RI T R

28b.Financial risk management objectives and 280. IR EEBERK
policies (continued) R#)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FERBRBETGE)
(continued)
Internal credit rating (continued) AR 1E BFFAR ()
Gross carrying amount (continued) BREIA21E (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TREYIEABS A ERE S E
has been recognised for trade receivables and contract WHBEEHNEERRANEZETE
assets under the simplified approach. H{ZE BB EE

Trade receivables Contract assets
A RUEE RNEE
Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-

impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired)
PHRNCERE 2HRNEEFR 2MRIGEEE 2ORNGEEE
(BEERE) (BRLEEEAE) (BEERE) (CRLEEEAE)
MOP000 MOP000 MOP000 MOP000

3 pe =

As at 1 January 2021 R2021E1A1H 129 - 164 - 293
Impairment losses under ECL model, TEEIE&EEER T2

net of reversal REEE  RER (52) 124 (30) - £
As at 31 December 2021 12021512831 H 7 124 134 - 335
Impairment losses under ECL model, FE&l(EEEEERT2

net of reversal RESE  MEEE 57 (103) (80) - (126)
As at 31 December 2022 H2022%12A31R 134 21 54 - 209
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is REBRUTBER THURE 5 &
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial WHIE: EBEEANBTEBAS
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. BREGEH# A EERIREA
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has Bt - B AE BB HE AT
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade ERF IMEZEWFEDE
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs HERBME (AR P EHEERE)
earlier.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28.£m T A )

28b. Financial risk management objectives and 280. I E R EEEERK
policies (continued) R)
Liquidity risk REBESEMR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REERHESCRERE  X&EE
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed B R B IR E R AR B A
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s EFLENRVRESRERET
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash EMsBRENRERIREEE
flows. YK e
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRHFMAEESHBENG T
maturity for its financial liabilities which has been drawn up ABHENEER  HOBRBEAREE
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities RAfewEREENSZFE AEZ
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be THAENRIRRETERR

required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TREENEERAESHRERE -
Liquidity risk TMEEL R

Weighted Repayable
average on demand 3 months Total Total
effective  or less than to 1t02 2to5 Over5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years years cash flows amount

mEYS  REREE AERRE
REAE  AORSER  3EARIE 122% 255% BB5F RELHR RE4E
%  MOPO00  MOP000  MOP'O00  MOP'000  MOP'O00  MOP'000  MOP'000
TR TR TR L.l FRfT Ll il

At 31 December 2022 R2022512 8318
Non-derivative financial FTESRAR

liabilities
Trade payables EHEMATE - 9,751 108 - - - 9,859 9,859
Bank borrowing RIER 2875 128 387 530 1,683 10,607 13,335 13,323
Lease liabiliies RERE 5 274 354 230 - - 858 830

10,153 849 760 1,683 10,607 24,052 24,012
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Weighted Repayable
average on demand 3 months
effective or less than to
interest rate 3 months 1 year
S
KISk
MOP'000 MoP

FE—

28. T H»)

28b.

B EEEEEEREK
R(#E)

RBETERE @)

BB TR ()

Total Total

Over  undiscounted carrying

5 years cash flows amount
AURRS

g
MOP000 MOP'000

At 31 December 2021 2021512310
Non-derivative financial FiTEERAR
liabilities
Trade payables BHEMAZE - 2,566 1,496 - - - 4,062 4,062
Lease liabilities BERE 5 279 413 490 230 - 1,412 1,351
2845 1,909 490 230 - 5474 5413
28c. Fair value measurements of financial 28c. TR T AN A FEF=Z

instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying
amounts.

TREERERABENORFET
REERBERASREINHOR
REBHEAEE

RBERANENEREERS
BABNAFERERAERS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

29.PERFORMANCE BONDS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Certain customers of construction contracts undertaken by the
Group require the group entity to issue guarantees for the
performance of contract works in the form of performance bonds
and secured by pledged bank deposits (see note 18). The
performance bonds are released when the construction contracts
are completed or substantially completed.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had outstanding
performance bonds as follows:

Issued to the Group by a bank

R —RIRTTRANEEE H

20.BHAGRERFIAREE

AEEMAERERONETEREX
SEEBUBRORIBLARSHIED
MITRHEERLABERRITER(R
BIFE18) fEIE - BORBIREES
HITERK R R ERTT A B AR ER

REFERR - AEEHRBITEOR
FT

2022
2022 F

2021

2021 4
MOP’000
FEPIT

MOP’000
FHRFIT

5,411 6,698

At 31 December 2022, the Group has obtained total credit
facilities of MOP97,993,000 (2021: MOP149,568,000) for the
issuance of performance bonds and these credit facilities were
secured by the promissory notes of MOP153,178,000 (2021:
MOP164,524,000) provided by the Company.

30.RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

R2022F12 A31H - AEBED BT
B4 REFEEVS 2 B R & 4858 97,993,000
S P9 JT (20214 : 149,568,00072 P9
L) ZEEERMERARAREL
153,178,0003% [9 JT (20214 :
164,524,000 27T ) (Y AR HETTH IR o

30.F@ A LTI E
TESE A S
RERNESENEMTEEIE A BRI
/NN

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4

MOP’000 MOP’ 000

FHEFIT FEFIT

Short-term employee benefits 5= EEB R 4,737 4,641
Post-employment benefits BB R R A 21 18
4,758 4,659

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by
the management of the Company having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

31.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

31.%§5£EE$E’JEE¥T

TREMAEEREIDELNAER
BER(BRERASIIFREEE) - BE
APEANAEREERSREBRLIR
KBEEREFRAREGERERER
TOERRERDELNRERENE

& e

Lease Dividend Bank
liabilities payable borrowing Total
HEEE EARE BITEX @t
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFIT FRFIT FRFIT
(note 21)
(Hiz21)
At 1 January 2021 H2021F1A1H 1,332 - - 1,332
Financing cash flows (note) BERSREWiE) (1,107) - - (1,107)
New leases entered HEIEE 71 - - 71
Lease modification HEB 1,008 - - 1,008
Interest expense FIEHY 47 - - 47
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12 531 B 1,351 - - 1,351
Financing cash flows (note) AR HE (W) (1,105) (30,946) 13194 (18,857)
Dividend declared BEERRE - 30,946 - 30,946
Lease modification MEET 536 - - 536
Interest expense FEBRAX 48 - 129 177
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12 A31H 830 - 13,323 14,153

Note: The cash flows make up the net amount of repayment of lease liabilities,
dividend paid and bank borrowing in the consolidated statement of cash

flows.

32.PLEDGE OF ASSET

The Group’s borrowings had been secured by the pledge of the
Group’s property plant and equipment and the carrying amounts
is MOP16,906,000.

Wit RenEfEFaRieRnERTEER
BaE  BNBRERRITEREFE -

32.5EKF

AEBEFARNEENYE - BE MK
B IEER - B8R (B 416,906,000
BP9 IT e
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e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33.7< T B #8480 &
OF THE COMPANY

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

MOP’000 MOP’000
FRAMAT  THT

Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RETBARRIRE 35,569 35,569
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUSH B A R RIE 50,837 50,388
86,406 85,957
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TEfTRIE 419 105
Bank balances RITHE R 2,661 2,922
3,080 3,027
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals EErE A 2,254 1,677
Tax liabilities MIEAE 158 32
2,412 1,709
Net current assets REBEEFE 668 1,318
Net assets EEFE 87,074 87,275
Capital and reserves BERRHE
Share capital R& 2R 5,150 5,150
Reserves & 81,924 82,125
Total equity FESAAER 87,074 87,275
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REMBHRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE2022F12 31 HILFE

33.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement on the Company’s reserves

A D E S

Share
premium

40k B
MOP’000
THFIT

Accumulated
losses
ZitEE
MOP’000
FEPIT

33. KRB B BEARRTT @)

Total
st
MOP’000
FEFIT

At 1 January 2021 7R20219F1 A1H 111,487 (32,196) 79,291
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNEEEKEBEE

income for the year - 2,834 2,834
At 31 December 2021 72021412 A31 B 111,487 (29,362) 82,125
Profit and total comprehensive FRRFEREERREE

income for the year - 30,745 30,745
Dividend f% 2 - (30,946) (30,946)
At 31 December 2022 720224 12 A 31 A 111,487 (29,563) 81,924
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBERBE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements and the Prospectus is set out below.

AEERAAEMBRFECXENREERA
BEOHE - HiEREEBRRERAM B RER LA
BRERESIIT o

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HILEE

196

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 F 2021 4 2020 4 20194 20184
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000  MOP’000
FHEFI T FEFPIT FEFIT FHEFTT FEPTT
RESULTS E ¥
Revenue L 143,046 184,496 276,790 237,680 218,254
Profit before tax B 54 B8 10,524 29,104 29,764 45,994 32,395
Income tax expense FTiSiiF (1,212) (2,866) (3,091) (5,456) (4,965)
Profit and total comprehensive F R F| &2 M
income for the year WS 4a%E 9,312 26,238 26,673 40,538 27,430
Basic and diluted earnings BRRER KR EE
per share (MOP cents) 2F CRFIW) 1.86 5.25 6.23 10.21 6.91

At 31 December

MW12H831H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 & 2021 4 20204 20194 2018 4F
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000  MOP’000
FHEFT FEPIT FEPIT FEPIT FEPIT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES XEREAE
Total assets BERR 259,872 274,942 260,845 166,473 113,936
Total liabilities BEBE (45,096) (38,532) (50,673) (64,042) (52,043)
Net assets BERE 214,776 236,410 210,172 102,431 61,893
Total equity B 214,776 236,410 210,172 102,431 61,893
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